
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, October 7, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

Posted: 10/3/14 
 

AGENDA 
 

The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or 
treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Penny Hill, Assistant City Manager, 400 
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 922-4440, T.D.D., 922-4766, has been designated to 
coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements. If you are planning to attend and you 
have a disability requiring any special assistance at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please 
immediately notify the ADA Coordinator. 
 
Planning Commission 
c/o Russell Soyring, Planning Director 
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684 
231-922-4778 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3.       ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. Approval of Minutes: September 3, 2014 Regular Meeting, September 5, 2014 
Study Session and September 16, 2014 Special Meeting minutes (Approval 
recommended) 

B. Oakwood Cemetery Maintenance Building- Review for Consistency with Master 
Plan (Approval recommended) 

C. Bayshore Corridor Resolution (Approval recommended) 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Grand Traverse County Master Plan (John Sych) 



Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 2 
 

B. Public Hearing to consider a Special Land Use Permit request and Site Plan Review 
request by W. Keith Owen of Owen Architects Collaborative, LLC on behalf of 
Federated Properties, LLC to allow for a taller building at 124 W. Front Street 

C. Public Hearing to consider a Special Land Use Permit request by Peter Starkel on 
behalf of Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. to allow for an Emergency Shelter at 
517 Wellington Street, a property owned by the City of Traverse City 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE   

  
8. REPORTS 

A. City Commission- Commissioners Easterday and Werner 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- Commissioner Bergman 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- Commissioners Serratelli and 

Warren 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— Commissioner Bergman  
2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner 
3. Master Plan Review Committee—Commissioners Bergman, Dow and 

Twietmeyer 
4. Parking Regulation Committee- Commissioner Serratelli 

 
E. Planning Department—Mr. Soyring 

1. Capital Improvement Program—Mrs. Luick 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
WEDNESDAY, September 3, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Training Room 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

PRESENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioners Michael Dow, Jeanine 
Easterday, Janet Fleshman, Cecil McNally, Janice Warren and Tim Werner 

ABSENT: Chairperson John Serratelli and Commissioner Bill Twietmeyer 
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant; Tim Lodge, City Engineer 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- Vice-Chairperson Bergman called the meeting to order at 7:30 

p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3.       ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Vice-Chairperson Bergman announced that the video recording equipment is not working; 
therefore, the meeting cannot be taped and replayed on Up North TV. We will be recording 
the meeting using audio equipment only. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. August 5, 2014 Regular Meeting minutes (Approval recommended) 
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Commissioner McNally that the 
August 5, 2014 Regular Meeting minutes be approved. 
 
Commission discussion.  
 
Vice-Chairperson Bergman and Mr. Soyring responded to a question about the 
minutes. 
 
Motion carried 7-0 (Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing to consider an alley vacation request initiated by Bonnie Adams, of 
441 Fair Street, to vacate a portion of an unimproved alley in the 1400 block of 
Eighth Street (Action requested) 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 2              
 

Mr. Soyring summarized his August 28, 2014 memo to the Commission. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Bergman opened the Public Hearing. The following individuals 
made public comment: 

• Judy Schaeffer, 1132 Titus Street, expressed support 
• Mary Fossil, property owner of 1409 E 8th Street, non city-resident, made 

general comments 
• Leah Zelewiski, 440 Conklin Street, expressed support 
• Cindy Elliot, city resident, expressed support 
• Joe Fossil, property owner of 1409 E 8th Street, non city-resident, expressed 

opposition 
 

The Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Easterday, second by Commissioner Warren, that 
the request from Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to vacate a portion of an 
east/west alley north of the 1400 block of East 8th Street provided utility 
easements are provided be hereby approved by the Planning Commission 
and such recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their 
consideration. 
 
Commission discussion included the possibility of reducing the alley vacation 
width to allow for better ingress/egress to 1409 E. 8th Street. Staff concluded 
that they do not object to a reduction in the alley vacation size adjustment. 
 

• Bonnie Adams, 441 Fair Street, applicant, stated that she was willing 
to further reduce her alley vacation request to approximately 12.5 
feet by 65 feet. 

 
Moved by Commissioner McNally, seconded by Commissioner Easterday, 
that motion be amended to vacate the north 12.5 feet by approximately 65 
feet of the dead-end alley that is a portion of an east/west alley north of the 
1400 block of East 8th Street. 
 
Motion carried 7-0 (Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

B. 2015 Street Projects (Plainview and State Street)- Review for consistency with 
Master Plan- (Action requested) 
 
Mr. Soyring summarized his August 28, 2014 memo to the Commission. Mr. Soyring 
apologized for not including the State Street traffic calming concepts in the packet. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 3              
 

They were emailed to the Commission and printed and distributed on your desk this 
evening. 
 
Mr. Soyring suggested that the Commission discuss each street separately and 
began with State Street. He described that the Staff recommendation is for a 30’ 
wide street with traffic calming measures that do not include bike lanes. 
 
Commission discussion.  
 
The following individuals made public comment on the subject: 

• Pat Brady, 1617 East Lane, made general comments 
• Deni Scrudato, 422 E. State Street, made general comments 
• Lee Kurt, 428 E. State Street, expressed support 
• John Scrudato, 422 E. State Street, made general comments 
• Julie Clark, 608 W 12th Street, director of TART Trails, expressed support 

 
Commission discussion.  
 
Mr. Soyring responded to Commission questions. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Werner that the 2015 Street Project-State Street as 
described in this memo dated August 28, 2014 except for rebuilding the street at a 
width of 27’ instead of 32’ and the addition of traffic calming measures without bike 
lanes is consistent with the City Master Plan in terms of extent, location and 
character. 
 
The motion was not seconded. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Commissioner McNally, that the 2015 
Street Project-State Street as described in this memo dated August 28, 2014 except 
for rebuilding the street at a width of 30’ instead of 32’ and the addition of traffic 
calming measures without bike lanes is consistent with the City Master Plan in 
terms of extent, location and character. 
 
Motion carried 6-1 (Commissioner Werner opposed; Chairperson Serratelli and 
Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 
Mr. Soyring discussed the staff recommendations for Plainview Street and the 
reasoning behind the recommendations as stated in the August 28, 2014 memo to 
the Commission.  



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 4              
 

 
Commission discussion.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Dow, second by Commissioner Warren, that the 2015 
Street Project-Plainview Street as described in this memo dated August 28, 2014 
(no sidewalks or curbs) except for the addition of a hammerhead turn around at the 
end (“T” shape) to facilitate turning around a snow plow or grader at the east end 
of the street is consistent with the City Master Plan in terms of extent, location and 
character. 
 
There were no members of the public wishing to speak on this subject. 
 
Motion carried 6-1 (Commissioner Werner opposed; Chairperson Serratelli and 
Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

C. West Front Street- Review for consistency with Master Plan- (Action requested) 
 
Mrs. Luick summarized the August 29, 2014 memo to the Commission. She further 
explained that if the Commission still finds the concept approved in March to be 
consistent with the Master Plan, then no further action is necessary. However, if 
Alternative Options 1 and/or 2 are found to be consistent with the Master Plan, 
then a motion will be required. 
 
Nate Elkins, of Influence Design Forum, presented to the Commission and 
responded to Commission questions. 
 
Commission discussion.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Commissioner McNally, that the West 
Front Streetscape Project: Alternative Options 1 and 2 are found to be consistent 
with the City Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 

 
The following individuals made public comment on the subject: 

• Ed Froy, city business owner, made general comments 
• Julie Clark, 608 W 12th Street, director of TART Trails, expressed support 

 
Motion carried 7-0 (Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Special Land Use Permit request and Site Plan Review request by W. Keith Owen of 

Owen Architects Collaborative, LLC on behalf of Federated Properties, LLC to allow 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 5              
 

for a taller building at 124 W. Front Street (For introduction and possibly scheduling 
a Public Hearing) 
 
Mr. Soyring summarized the August 29, 2014 memo to the Commission. He further 
stated that a 1999 zoning code amendment created the requirement for taller 
buildings to go through the Special Land Use Permit Process. 
 
Mr. Owen, applicant on behalf of Federated Properties, LLC, presented a brief 
overview of the building attributes and discussed the planned improvements to the 
riverfront and how the project would tie into the Pine Street pedestrian bridge 
project. 
 
Commission discussion.  
 
Mr. Owen responded to Commission questions. 
 
Mr. Lodge responded to Commission questions. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Werner, second by Commissioner Warren, that the 
request by W. Keith Owen of Owen Architects Collaborative, LLC on behalf of 
Federated Properties, LLC  for a Special Land Use Permit and Site Plan Review to 
allow for a taller building at 124 W. Front Street be introduced and scheduled for a 
public hearing on October 7, 2014. 
 
The following individuals made public comment on the subject: 

• Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Street, made general comments 
 

Motion carried 7-0 (Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 
Commission discussion included displaying a set of plans for the building in the 
Planning Department. 
 

B. Grand Traverse County Outstanding Development Planning Award Nominations 
(Action Requested) 

 
Mrs. Luick summarized the August 27, 2014 memo to the Commission and stated 
that the Commission could choose to nominate both of the projects suggested, only 
one of the projects or to nominate additional projects.  
 
Commission discussion.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 6              
 

Motion by Commissioner McNally, second by Commissioner Easterday that the 
Planning Commission nominates the Water Bottle Filling Station Project and 160 E. 
Front Street Development as Outstanding Development Projects to the Grand 
Traverse County Chapter of Michigan Townships Association and the Grand 
Traverse County Planning Department for their Annual Awards Banquet. 
 
Motion carried 7-0 (Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

7. CORRESPONDENCE   
A. Capital Improvement Program Quarterly Project Update August 2014 

 
Mrs. Luick reminded the Commission that the quarterly report only includes 
updates on projects previously requested by the Commission and if there are 
additional project updates desired to let us know. 
 

8. REPORTS 
A. City Commission- Commissioners Easterday reported. 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- Commissioner Bergman reported. 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- Commissioner Warren 

reported. 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— No report. 
2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner reported. 
3. Master Plan Review Committee—No report. 
4. Parking Regulation Committee- No report. 

E. Planning Department—Mrs. Luick reported that the West End Beach Trail and 
Access project will begin next week and the West Boardman Lake Trail project 
currently has about 60% trail grade cut. Construction progress is noticeable. 
1. Capital Improvement Program—Mrs. Luick reported earlier in the agenda. 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Peter Starkel, 701 Westminster Road, applicant for Safe Harbor Special Land Use 
Permit proposal, made comments related to their proposal not being allowed on 
the Planning Commission agenda. 

• Charlene Hunt, 522 E Eighth Street, city business owner, made general comments 
about the Safe Harbor proposal 

• Richard Kushell, 500 Webster Street, made general comments about the Safe 
Harbor proposal 

• Commissioner Easterday cited the Planning Commissione Bylaws, Section III. C. 
which states that “a special meeting of the Commission may be called by the 
Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson in the event the Chairperson is out of town, or 
any three members of the Commission.” Commissioner Easterday then made a 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Page 7              
 

request on behalf of herself, Commissioners Werner and Warren that the 
September 16, 2014 meeting be a Special Meeting instead of a Study Session to 
consider the Special Land Use Request by Safe Harbor.  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting was adjourned at 10:09 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



 

MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
September 5, 2014 

 
A quorum of the Planning Commission was present at a tour of the building owned by the City 
of Traverse City at 517 Wellington Street, at 2 p.m.  
 
The following Commissioners were present, constituting a quorum:  Commissioners Dow, 
Easterday, McNally, Warren and Werner. 

 
The following Commissioners were absent: Vice-Chairperson Bergman, Commissioner 
Fleshman, Chairperson Serratelli and Commissioner Twietmeyer. 

 
 No decisions were made; these minutes are simply to document a quorum of the Planning 
Commission was present at this tour.  

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  
 



 
 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
TUESDAY September 16, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 
PRESENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioners Michael Dow, Jeanine 

Easterday, Janet Fleshman, Chairperson John Serratelli, Bill Twietmeyer 
(arrived at 7:35 p.m.), Janice Warren, and Tim Werner 

ABSENT: Commissioner Cecil McNally  
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Serratelli at 

7:30 p.m.  
 
2. ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS- Chairperson Serratelli provided opening remarks regarding the 

placement of Safe Harbor’s Special Land Use Permit request on the Planning Commission 
agenda. 
 
Commissioner Twietmeyer joined the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 
 

4. SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT REQUEST BY PETER STARKEL ON BEHALF OF SAFE HARBOR OF 
GRAND TRAVERSE, INC TO ALLOW FOR AN EMERGENCY SHELTER AT 517 WELLINGTON 
STREET, A PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY (FOR INTRODUCTION AND 
POSSIBLY SCHEDULING A PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Mr. Soyring explained the details included in his September 10, 2014 memo to the 
Commission. He further explained that staff considers the application to be complete. The 
applicant is required to meet all of the general and specific standards in the Special Land 
Use Permit chapter for Emergency Shelters. Staff will prepare a staff report for the request 
for the Public Hearing. 
 
Peter Starkel addressed the Commission.  
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Mr. Starkel responded to Commission questions.  



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 
Page 2              
 

 
Commission discussion included questions related to the management plan and meeting 
the general and specific standards in the Special Land Use Permit section of the zoning 
code. 
 
Ryan Hannon, Goodwill street outreach director, addressed the Commission. 
 
Mr. Soyring will inquire with the Police Department if there is an police calls when Safe 
Harbor opens in the fall. Mr. Soyring will also check with the City Attorney to verify that the 
SLUP is included in the building lease agreement and would changes/amendments to the 
Management Plan included in the SLUP be required to go through the SLUP amendment 
process in the zoning code. Both outcomes will be included in the staff report for the SLUP. 
 
The following made public comments on the subject: 

• Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelly Street, opposes the request 
• Richard Kuchell, 500 Webster Street, opposes the request 
• Deni Scrudato, 422 State Street, made general comments 
• Susan Kuchell, 500 Webster Street, made general comments 
• Mark Jensen, 515 Wellington Street, property and business owner, made general 

comments 
• Jo Bartlett, 715 E State Street, opposes the request 
• Tom Emmett, 1702 Lincoln Street, supports the request 
• Dale Hunt, 522 E 8th Street, business owner and property owners, opposes the 

request 
• Dale Neuman, 401 Washington Street, opposes the request 
• John Scrudato, 422 State Street, opposes the request 
• Jerry Jenkins, 502 Washington Street, 1129 Woodmere, property owner and 

business owner, made general comments 
• Darci Pickren, 916 Pine Street, business owner and city resident, supports the 

request 
• Melissa Dow, 436 Washington Street, opposes the request 
• Justin Reid, 630 Cottageview Drive, made general comments 
• Randy Billingsley, 205 Wellington, opposes the request 
• Brandon Hunt, 717 Highland Park Dr, opposes the request 
• Ryan Hannon, 2279 S. Airport Road, non city resident, made general comments 

 
Commission discussion.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Vice-Chairperson Bergman, that the 
request by Peter Starkel on behalf of Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. to allow 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 
Page 3              
 

for an Emergency Shelter at 517 Wellington Street, a property owned by the City of 
Traverse City be introduced and scheduled for a Public Hearing on October 7, 2014. 
 

 Commission discussion. 
 
 Motion carried 6-2 (Commissioners Dow and Twietmeyer opposed, Commissioner McNally 

absent). 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT- None. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



    
 Agenda Item No. 4B  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  October 7, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering Assistant 
 

 SUBJECT: Project Review for Consistency with Master Plan for a 
Cemetery Maintenance Building 

 
                 DATE:  October 1, 2014 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Planning Commission is being asked to 
determine if the Cemetery Maintenance Facility Building is consistent with the Traverse City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
Location   
The address for the Oakwood Cemetery property is 1400 E. Eighth Street; however, the 
proposed maintenance building is planned to be located south and east from the Hannah 
Ave/Woodland Dr intersection utilizing a cemetery driveway.  

 
 
Although most of the cemetery property lies within the TC-C Campus Neighborhood, the 
proposed building location lies within the TC-2 Conventional Neighborhood. TC-2 is the least 
formally developed of the two types of residential neighborhoods. Intensity of any land use in 
TC-2 should be low with short duration or low levels of noise or other emissions. The Zoning 
Element is silent on the parcel that contains the proposed maintenance building. 
 
 
 



 
 
The proposed building location does not interfere with the Parks and Recreation Commission 
adopted 2002 Oakwood Cemetery Master Plan. Although the Master Plan does not show the 
maintenance building in the exact location as proposed, the logistics and cost savings due to 
the proposed location make more sense. There is a square piece of property to the west (and 
south) of the proposed maintenance structure that is owned by the Diocese that contains the 
current office, 2 mausoleums and 2 smaller and one large columnbarium structures for 
cremations and the remaining open areas are for burials and possible future mausoleums or 
columnbariums.  Some portions of this large square are already occupied with graves and the 
rest will proceed as needed.    
 
Extent 
The proposed building is 32x60 feet (1920 sq ft).  The plans also indicate an optional/future 
building addition to the south that would increase the size of the proposed building by 32x12 
feet (384 sq ft). The project includes the extension of a cemetery drive and a small parking lot 
that includes 5 parking spaces, 1 handicap parking space and a bicycle rack.   
 
Character 
The proposed building design is a pole barn structure with 3 garage bays, 2 access doors, a bank 
of windows, asphalt shingle roofing, metal siding to match existing cemetery office color, stone 
column base to match existing cemetery office building and lower metal siding color to be 
darker in color to provide an accent color on the building façade.  
 

  
 
The above illustrations show the proposed maintenance building and how the building will fit 
into the existing landscape and surrounding environment.  
 
Staff finds the proposed Cemetery Maintenance Building to be consistent with the Master Plan 
in terms of its location, extent and character. If the Commission concurs, the following motion 
would be appropriate: 
 
I move that the Cemetery Maintenance Building is found to be consistent with the City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
Attachments:  Letter from Dave Green, DPS Director dated 9/29/14 
  Site Plan 
  Floor Plan 





P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

C1.1

SITE PLAN

2014-162

p
.o

. 
b
o
x
 5

3
4
2
  

  
tr

a
v
e
rs

e
 c

it
y,

 m
i 
 4

9
6
9
6
  

  
2
3
1
-2

1
8
-1

2
0
1

w
w

w
.j
o

z
w

ia
k
c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
.c

o
m

SITE AND DIMENSION PLAN

C
L

IE
N

T
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
:

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R

Y
-

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
 C

IT
Y

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

PROJECT

ENGINEERS SEAL

SITE DATA

Legal Desc provided:

Part of Oakwood Cemetery

HANNAH AVE.

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 D
R

.

PROPOSED

BUILDING

32X60

1920 SF

FF=102.7

HANNAH AVE.

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 D
R

.

DEMOLITION PLAN

VICINITY MAP

KEYED SITE PLAN NOTES

1. Place asphalt in accordance with paving detail

2. 4’ wide doncrete apron, 6”

3. Integral curb/concrete sidewalk, 4”

4. Barrier free parking space and maneuvering aisle.  Max. slope, 2% in any direc(on

5. Install barrier free sign

6. Barrier free curb ramp

7. Install pipe bollards at each garage door bay

8. Bike rack

9. Not used

10. Install stone drain along eave.  Stone drain to be 3’ wide, 2’ deep and runs the length of the building.

11. Area to be graded between trees to create stormwater runoff/infiltra(on area.

12. Not used

13. Install 6” sanitary sewer lead.  See detail.

14. Sewer clean-out

15. Tap exis(ng 6” water main.  See detail.

16. Install curb stop and box.  See detail.

17. Install 1” type-k copper water service.  Maintain 5’ horizontal separa(on from sewer service.

18. Gas service (by others)

19. Electric service (by others)

20. Not used

21. Place 4” topsoil, seed with shade mix and mulch

22. Ex. vegeta(on to remain

BID ALTERNATE:

32X12

384 SF





 
 

THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY 
 

  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 

Governmental Center 
400 Boardman Ave 
Traverse City MI 49684 
(231) 922-4778 
www.traversecitymi.gov 

 CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT 

FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF THE GRAND TRAVERSE BAY SHORE CORRIDOR 
 
WHEREAS,  Acme Township, East Bay Charter Township, City of Traverse City, and Elmwood 

Charter Township value the Grand Traverse Bay and recognize the importance of 
the community’s urban interface with the Bay; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  each of the communities share a common link in the corridor highway along the 

bay front from Acme to Greilickville and recognize the corridor as a critical part 
of the region’s landscape, economy, and transportation system; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  increased congestion in the corridor by continual population and tourism growth 

results in signage and wayfinding challenges, safety hazards for motorized and 
non-motorized users, and negative impact on the quality of the bay which, if 
unmanaged, can negatively affect the quality of life experienced by guests, 
travelers, residents, and businesses of the corridor; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  several of the communities have developed, or are developing, master plans and 

sub-area plans that propose improvements to their respective bay fronts; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the planning commissions of each community, with the assistance of Grand 

Traverse County, conducted strategic discussions, identified many common 
issues, and provided similar approaches to address those issues; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  community leaders recognize the benefit of a coordinated effort and need for 

consistency in the overall development and redevelopment of the corridor; 
therefore, be it 

 
RESOLVED,  the City of Traverse City Planning Commission supports a common and 

collaborative approach to the improvement of the entire corridor. 
 

 I hereby certify that the above Resolution 
was adopted by the Traverse City Planning 
Commission at its regular meeting of 
October 7, 2014 in the Commission 
Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
__________________________________ 
Jan Warren, Secretary 

 



Agenda Item No. 5B  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
      FOR THE MEETING OF: October 7, 2014 
 
      FROM: Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider a Special Land Use Permit request and Site 
Plan Review request by W. Keith Owen of Owen Architects 
Collaborative, LLC on behalf of Federated Properties, LLC to allow for 
a taller building at 124 W. Front Street 

 
       DATE: October 2, 2014 
 
The Planning Department has received a request from W. Keith Owen of Owen Architects 
Collaborative, LLC on behalf of Federated Properties, LLC for a Special Land Use Permit for a taller 
building and Site Plan Approval at 124 W. Front Street.   The proposal is to build a five-story mixed 
use development with a single driveway access from Front Street.  The proposed development will 
include lower level parking, first floor commercial and residential; and residential use on floors two 
through five (for a total of 47 residential units). The site is currently vacant.  In 2007, the former 
Grand Traverse Auto building was demolished and the site was prepared for construction of a new 
building. J&S Hamburg, a one-story building, is located to the west and the Traverse City Record 
Eagle, a one-story building, is located to the east. 
 
Included in the packet are a detailed staff reports for the SLUP request as well as the Site Plan 
Review request. 
 
The decision to approve or disapprove a SLUP request by the Planning Commission must be based 
on the zoning code standards. If the proposal meets the standards, the request must be approved.  
 
If, after a Public Hearing is held, you feel Special Land Use Permit request meets the zoning code, 
then the following motion would be appropriate: 

 
I move that the request by W. Keith Owen of Owen Architects Collaborative, LLC on 
behalf of Federated Properties, LLC  for a Special Land Use Permit and Site Plan 
Review to allow for a taller building at 124 W. Front Street be approved with 
conditions as outlined in the Staff Report 14-SLUP-02 dated October 3, 2014 and 
Staff Report 14-SPR-01 dated October 3, 2014; and further that the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their 
consideration. 

RAS:mll 
 
Attachments:  Images of the proposed building 
  Staff Report 14-SLUP-02 dated October 3, 2014 
  Staff Report 14-SPR-01 dated October 3, 2014 
  (please bring the application submission materials from the September 3 meeting) 



124 West 
Front Street. 



S T A FF R E P O R T 
 14-SLUP-02 
 
 DATE: October 3, 2014 
 
 
 
APPLICANT:     W. Keith Owen, Owen Architects 

Collaboratiive, L.L.C. 
       333 Touraine 
       Grosse Pointe Farms, MI 48236 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS:    Federated Properties, LLC 
       30955 Northwestern Hwy. 
       Farmington Hills, MI 48334  

  
STATUS OF APPLICANT:    Architect. 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS:    124 W. Front Street.  

Tax I.D. # 28-51-706-004-00 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:    Construct a 5 story multi-use building with 

a building height of 65.5 feet. 
 
DESCRIPTION:     124 W. Front Street.  LOTS 14 THRU 24 

INCL HANNAH LAY & CO'S 5TH SUB & 
THT PRT OF BLOCK 26 OF ORIG PLAT 
LYING S OF BOARDMAN RIVER AND 
ADJ TO ABOVE REFERENCED LOTS  
(TAX DESCRIPTION) . 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

 
SITE SIZE:      1.04 acres (275’ x 165’) 
         
TOPOGRAPHY:     Sloping from Front Street to Boardman 

River. 
VEGETATION:     Grass with some scrub vegetation.   
 
SOILS:      Remediated brownfield site with sandy 

soils. 
EXISTING ZONING:    C-4b (Regional Center District). 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING/LAND USE:   
 



NORTH:    C-4a (Regional Center District) / Boardman River.
SOUTH:    C-4c (Regional Center District) / office and parking. 
EAST:     C-4b (Regional Center District) / Record Eagle. 
WEST:    C-4b (Regional Center District) / J&S Hamburger.
  
ZONING HISTORY:     From 1958 to 1999 the property was 

zoned C-4 (Central Business District).  In 
1999 the property was rezoned to C-4b 
(Regional Center District).    

 
RELEVANT SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE:  
 

Chapter 1346 C-4 Regional Center Districts (p. 79). 
Section 1346.02 Uses Allowed By S.L.U.P. (p. 81). 
Section 1364.02 General Standards For SLUP Approval (p.  

    137). 
Section 1364.08(m) Specific Requirements for Taller   

    buildings (p. 146). 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO THE CITY PLAN:  
 

The Future Land Use Map designates this 
neighborhood as a TC-5 Neighborhood.  The 
TC-5 Downtown Neighborhood is the most 
formally and intensely developed neighborhood 
in the City Plan.   The plan calls for the greatest 
building mass within the city with appropriate 
balance and scale.  Buildings shall typically be 
placed close to the street or civic spaces to 
provide a sense of enclosure to the public realm.  
 
The proposed plans are consisted with the goals 
and objectives of the TC-5 Urban Design 
Element.    

 
PUBLIC UTILITIES:   There are adequate utilities to serve this 

building. Overhead electrical lines that run from 
the Warehouse District across the river south to 
Hannah Park are planned to be undergrounded 
in 2015.  The developer will work with Traverse 
City Light and Power and City Engineering for a 
plan to have a power supply once the 
undergrounding takes place.  A 12-inch water 
main is located in Front Street and on a City 



             
 

3 

owned parcel next to J&S Hamburger.  An 8” 
sanitary sewer is located adjacent to the north 
west corner of the property behind the Record 
Eagle building.  Utility connections shall require 
approval from the City Engineer.  

 
TRAFFIC     The total square footage of the proposed 

building is 174,173 square feet which includes 
lower level parking and five floors. The project 
will consist of 33,526 square feet of lower level 
parking (70 spaces), 13,762 square feet of retail 
and 126,825 square feet of residential (47 
dwelling units) The project is anticipated to 
generate approximately 1,347 trip ends per day 
based on the Trip Generation Manual.  This 
number may be overly high as the Trip 
Generation Manual does not take into account 
that this project is located downtown where 
many trips utilize non-motorized travel (walking, 
biking) or utilize public transit. 

  
ACCESS:     The underground parking is proposed to be 

accessed from Front Street.  A complete sidewalk 
network is in the general vicinity and a pedestrian 
bridge and walkway connecting the Warehouse 
District to the downtown is planned to be 
constructed in 2015 and is adjacent to the 
property.   All the bus lines can be accessed at 
the transit center site three blocks from the 
property.  The boardwalk along the river is not a 
part of this project and would likely be a project 
initiated by the City.  If the boardwalk was 
constructed the City would like a pedestrian 
easement from the property to cross the 
developer’s property to access the boardwalk. 
The public transit service and sidewalk system 
will help to reduce the number of motor vehicle 
trip end generated by this project. 

 
PARKING:     Parking is not required in the C-4 districts. How-

ever the applicant is proposing to construct lower 
level parking which will have accommodations for 
70 parking spaces.   Private parking areas are 
allowed in the C-4 District provided it can be a 



             
 

4 

demonstrated need for private parking which will 
not be satisfied by existing public parking within 
500 feet of the proposed use.  (See letter from 
Parking Services that indicates there is a 
demonstrated need for additional parking.) 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 
General Standards 1364.02: 
 

 (a) The use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended 
character of the general vicinity. 

 
  The design of the building will be traditional masonry construction (brick 

veneer, stone, sill accents, etc.) with numerous windows and pedestrian 
entrances which will be harmonious with the character of the downtown and 
the general vicinity.  The windows on the west elevation will not meet building 
code due to the close proximity to the property line.  The applicant will need to 
secure more property or eliminate the windows.  

 
(b) The use shall not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or planned future 

uses in the same general vicinity. 
 

The proposed 5-story mixed use of the building (retail, residential and 
parking) reflects the proposed land uses and intensities in the area. Taller and 
larger buildings are intended for the TC-5 Neighborhood type.  The Zoning 
Code required a minimum height of 30 feet. . 

  
(c) The use shall be served adequately by existing public facilities and services, 

such as highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, 
refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities and schools. 

 
The proposed building is located on Front Street and across from Pine Street 
which are designated as collector streets. Nearby are Division Street and 
Grandview Parkway which are designated as arterials.  Schools should not be 
significantly impacted by the proposed residential dwellings in this building. 
There are adequate utilities to serve this building. Overhead electrical lines 
that run from the Warehouse District across the river south to Hannah Park 
are planned to be undergrounded in 2015.  The developer will work with 
Traverse City Light and Power and City Engineering for a plan to have a 
power supply once the undergrounding takes place.  A 12-inch water main is 
located under Front Street and on a City owned parcel next to J&S 
Hamburger.  An 8” sanitary sewer is located adjacent to the northwest corner 



             
 

5 

of the property behind the Record Eagle building.  The City Engineer has 
provided a memo as to the specific requirements for the utility connections. 

 
(d) The use shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for 

public facilities and services. 
 
The pedestrian bridge and electrical undergrounding are planned capital 
project improvements to the district.  The building will not create any 
excessive expenditures with public funds.  
 

(e) The use shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment or 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any person or property or to 
the general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, 
fumes, glare, orders or water runoff. 
 
The current street system can support the potential increased traffic volume. 
The proposed use of retail, residential, and a parking will not involve activities, 
processes, materials, equipment or nuisances that will be detrimental to any 
person or property.  Storm water runoff control will need to meet the 
requirements of Chapter 1068.  

 
(f) Where possible, the use shall preserve, renovate and restore historic 

buildings or landmarks affected by the development.  If the historic structure 
must be moved from the site, the relocation shall be subject to the standards 
of this section. 

 
There are no historic buildings on the site.  The parcel is a brownfield which 
was cleared several years ago as part of the overall development of the site.   

 
(g) Elements shall relate to the design characteristics of an individual structure or 

development to existing or planned developments in a harmonious manner, 
resulting in a coherent overall development pattern and streetscape. 
 
The design of the building has prominent store fronts with numerous windows 
and pedestrian entrances which will help break up the length of the building.  
The scale, materials and details in the design of the proposed building appear 
to reflect and reinforce the downtown development pattern and improve the 
pedestrian experience through an enhanced streetscape.  The design uses 
vertical and horizontal relief to make components of the building in scale to 
other downtown buildings.  
 
 

 



             
 

6 

(h) The use shall be consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district 
in which it is proposed. 

 
The uses proposed for the building are permitted by right in the C-4 District.  
Taller buildings greater than 60 feet are allowed as a special use if all of the 
general and specific standards are met.  

 
(i) The specific requirements outlined in each applicable section of this Zoning 

Code shall be satisfied. 
 

The plans submitted appear to be substantially in compliance with the Zoning 
Code 
 

Specific Requirements 1364.08 (m) 
 

(1) The building stories and height are consistent with Section 1368.01. 
 

The permitted building height for the C-4b Zoning District is as follows: 
  
60 feet maximum. Sixty-eight (68) feet in height is allowed if at least 20% of 
the building is designed and used for dwellings. 
 
The proposed 5- story building will have a height of 65.5 feet to the roof deck 
at the west end of the building on Front Street. Not including the lower level 
parking area (which is for the residents) the building consists of 90% 
residential dwellings.   

 
(2) Roof top mechanical equipment and penthouse space that are an integral part 
 of the architectural design are permitted. All mechanical equipment, 
 appurtenances and access areas shall be completely architecturally screened 
 from view and enclosed. 
 

There will rooftop mechanical equipment located in the center of the building 
roof which will be screen by a 4 foot tall parapet wall that goes around the 
entire roof structure.  

 
(3) Extended heights for steeples and other architectural embellishments less 
 than 400 square feet each shall not be used to determine the height of the 
 building. 
 
 No steeples or other architectural embellishments are planned as apart of this 
 project. 
 



             
 

7 

(4) The applicant shall prepare and deliver to the Planning Director a scale 
 model, video image or other similar depiction of a taller building in relation to 
 surrounding land and buildings. 
 

The applicant will be presenting a computer model from different vantage 
points at the public hearing. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends that Special Land Use Permit No. 14-SLUP-02 to construct an  
5-story, 65.5 foot, mixed-use building be approved contingent on the following: 

 
  

1. The applicant and owner continue to work with City Engineering and 
Light and Power on utility extensions and service lines. 
 

2. The owner shall be responsible for extending and relocating service 
extensions to the proposed building. These utilities must meet all 
applicable ordinance and City requirements. 

 
3. If relocation of public utilities is necessary, the applicant will be 

responsible in providing the City any easement necessary for 
relocation. 

 
4. The stormwater requirements outlined in the City Ordinance are met.  

 
5. If the public riverwalk is constructed adjacent to the parcel and extends 

down to Union Street a mutually agreeable pedestrian easement 
between the City and the owner shall be provided.  

 
6. Audio and or visual devices for managing conflicts between 

pedestrians and vehicular traffic entering and exiting the building shall 
be provided. 

 
7. The public sidewalk along Front Street shall extend across the 

proposed driveway.   
 
  
 
 

 
 



124 W. Front Street    Page 1 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

          
  Site Plan Review 
  Staff Report  
 October 3, 2014 
 14-SPR-01: Prepared for property commonly known as 124 West Front Street 
 
SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST 

 
 
Yes 

 
No 

 
 Site plans are required to meet the following requirements: 

 
x 

 
 

 
Filing fee 

 
x 

 
 

 
Sealed by a registered architect or engineer (except site plans to be referred to the 
Planning Commission for approval may defer this requirement until receiving Planning 
Commission approval.)   

 
x 

 
 

 
Drawn to scale with a scale on the plan 

 
x 

 
 

 
Rendered on a minimum sheet size of 24 inches by 36 inches 

 
x 

 
 

 
Legal description 

 
x 

 
 

 
Property lines and dimensions 

 
x 

 
 

 
North arrow 

 
x 

 
 

 
Date 

 
x 

 
 

 
Vicinity map 

 
x 

 
 

 
Property owner’s and applicant’s name and address 

 
x 

 
 

 
Preparer’s name and address 

 
x 

 
 

 
Street names 

 
x 

 
 

 
Existing street and alley widths 

 
x 

 
 

 
Location and width of utility easements 

 
x 

 
 

 
Size and location of existing and proposed utilities and building service lines 

 
x 

 
 

 
The zoning classification of the site and surrounding properties and, where applicable, 
the zoning request 

 
x 

 
 

 
Required setback lines, lot size, lot coverage (impervious surface) and any variance to be 
requested. 
 
It appears the upper level shading device extends into the Front Street right-of-way 
approximately 6 inches.  This device will need to reduced in size or an encroachment 



124 W. Front Street    Page 2 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
 Site plans are required to meet the following requirements: 

agreement will need to be obtained. The applicant has indicated that it is the intent to 
stay within the property lines.  
 

 
 
x 

 
 

 
 
The size and location of existing buildings and improvements on and adjacent to the 
subject parcel 
 

x  
 The existing building use and proposed building use, location, shape, building height, 

elevations, floor area and unit computations and dimensions and a description of all 
exterior building materials 
 
The total square footage of the proposed building is 174,173 square feet which includes 
lower level parking and five floors. The project will consist of 33,526 square feet of lower 
level parking (70 spaces), 13,762 square feet of retail and 126,825 square feet of 
residential (47 dwelling units).  The design of the building will be traditional masonry 
construction (brick veneer, stone, sill accents, etc.) with numerous windows and 
pedestrian entrances which will be harmonious with, and extend (to the west) the 
character of the downtown and the general vicinity.  The windows on the west elevation 
will not meet building code due to the close proximity to the property line. The applicant 
will need to secure more property or eliminate the windows. 

 
x 

 
 

 
A land use tabulation summary provided in the margin of the plan indicating types of 
uses, acreage for each land use, number of units, densities and land use intensities 

 
x 

 
 

 
The proposed number and location of parking spaces, maneuvering lanes, sidewalks, 
driveways and loading areas, and their dimensions and proposed points of access to the 
site from public streets and alleys. 
The parcel is not served by an alley and attempts to negotiate access from the Record 
Eagle property to the east, failed.  No parking is required, however the project proposes 
lower level parking (70 spaces) within the building with a driveway accessing Front Street. 
The driveway accessing Front Street does not meet City design standards and will need to 
be redrawn to show the public sidewalk continuing through the drive.  

 
x 

 
 

 
The proposed location and dimensions of site drainage areas, walkways, landscaped 
areas, recreation areas, open space and screen walls. 
 
The applicant shall meet the requirements of the Storm Water Runoff Control Ordinance 
and the requirements of the D.E.Q. for a contaminated site.  Pedestrian travel ways 
adequately serve the proposed development.  The applicant shows a plaza, bike racks and 
landscaping on the west side of the building.  This property is not owned by the applicant 
and will need to be obtained in order for the improvements to be made.  A pedestrian 
bridge over Boardman River is expected to be constructed in 2015 and the applicant is 
proposing a private plaza on the north side of the building with connections to a future 10 
foot wide river walk.  When the riverwalk is constructed, the City would like a pedestrian 
easement from the property to cross the developer’s property to access the boardwalk.   

   



124 W. Front Street    Page 3 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
 Site plans are required to meet the following requirements: 

x  Natural features, such as unique topographic features, wetlands, 100-year flood plain 
elevations, creeks, springs and others, with an indication as to which are proposed to be 
maintained, altered or removed during site development. 
 
Except for some scrub vegetation the site was cleared in 2007 as part of the overall 
development of the site. The plaza and walkway improvements are located outside the 
100-year flood plain of Boardman River.  

 
x 

 
 

 
Any other information necessary to establish compliance with City ordinances. 
 
The applicant has stated that the exterior building lighting shall be dark sky compliant and 
shielded from neighboring properties and public streets. 

 
x 

 
 

 
Landscaping - meets landscaping requirements of Chapter 1372. 
 
The landscape plan meets the requirements of Chapter 1373.   

 
x 

 
 

 
Parking - meets parking requirements of Chapter 1374. 
 
No parking is required, however the project proposes lower level parking (70 spaces) 
within the building with a driveway accessing Front Street. The driveway accessing Front 
Street does not meet City design standards and will need to be redrawn to show the public 
sidewalk continuing through the drive.  Six bike racks are shown on a neighboring 
property.  In the event the applicant does not secure this property the bike racks will need 
to be installed on the applicant’s property or in the public right-of-way.  The bike racks will 
need to meet the requirements of Section 1374.02(c)(2). Private parking for residents are 
allowed by right with a maximum of one per dwelling unit.  The additional 23 spaces are 
allowed based on a letter from Traverse City Parking Services which states there is not 
sufficient public parking within 500 of the proposed use.  
 

 

 CHECKLIST OF STANDARDS 

 FOR GRANTING SITE PLAN APPROVAL    
 
Yes 

 
No 

 
The Planning Commission or Planning Director must consider the following standards for 
granting site plan approval.   These items must be indicated on the site plan. 

 
x 

 
 

 
Primary structures shall be oriented so that their main entrance faces the street upon 
which the lot fronts.  If the development is on a corner lot, the main entrance may be 
oriented to either street or to the corner. 
 
The proposed building is located on Front Street with numerous windows and pedestrian 
entrances which will be harmonious with, and extend (to the west) the character of the 
downtown and the general vicinity.    

   



124 W. Front Street    Page 4 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
The Planning Commission or Planning Director must consider the following standards for 
granting site plan approval.   These items must be indicated on the site plan. 

 x  All roof-mounted equipment, including satellite dishes and other communication 
equipment, must be screened from recreation trails or from public sidewalks adjacent to 
the site by a parapet wall or similar architectural feature.  
 
There will be rooftop mechanical equipment located in the center of the building roof which 
will be screened by a 4 foot tall parapet wall that goes around the entire roof structure.  
 

 
x 

 
 

 
Reasonable visual and sound mitigation for all dwelling units shall be provided.  Fences, 
walks, barriers and landscaping shall be used appropriately for the protection and 
enhancement of property and for the privacy of its occupants. 
 
There are 47 dwelling units proposed with this project.  The dwelling units on the first 
level are on the river side and are buffered with retail spaces that line Front Street.  The 
fifth floor is recessed back from the building facade and Front Street. 

 
x 

 
 

 
Every principal building or groups of buildings shall be so arranged as to permit 
emergency access by some practical means to all sides. 
 
The project has vehicular and pedestrian access from Front Street.  Pedestrians and small 
utility vehicles can access the north and west sides of the building.  Provided the current 
street width of Front Street remains the same, street trees are maintained at a height 
below the third story window and there are no overhead utilities adjacent to the building, 
the City Fire Marshall approves the Special Land Use Permit / Site Plan Review request.    

 
x 

 
 

 
Every development shall have legal access to a public or private street. 
 

 
x 

 
 The development, where possible, shall provide vehicular and pedestrian circulation 

systems which reflect and extend the pattern of streets, pedestrian and bicycle ways in 
the area.  Travel ways which connect and serve adjacent development shall be designed 
appropriately to carry the projected traffic. 
 
Pedestrian travel ways adequately serve the proposed development.  The proposed 
building is located on Front Street and across from Pine Street which are designated as 
collector streets. Nearby are Division Street and Grandview Parkway which are designated 
as arterials and can support the potential increased traffic volume.   

x  
 A pedestrian circulation system shall be provided which is physically separated and 

insulated as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 
 
The public sidewalk along Front Street needs to extend across the proposed driveway.  
The proposal shows the public walk breaking for the driveway.  

   



124 W. Front Street    Page 5 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
The Planning Commission or Planning Director must consider the following standards for 
granting site plan approval.   These items must be indicated on the site plan. 

x  All parking areas shall be designed to facilitate safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian 
circulation, minimize congestion at points of access and egress to intersecting roads, to 
encourage the appropriate use of alleys and minimize the negative visual impact of such 
parking areas.  
 
There is no public alley adjacent to this site.  There are two driveways accessing Front 
Street which will be eliminated.  One new driveway will be added to the east side of the 
property to access the lower level parking area. Equipment will be installed to warn 
pedestrians when a motor vehicle is about to cross the sidewalk.  
  

 
x 

 
 

 
Where the opportunity exists, developments shall use shared drives.  Unnecessary curb 
cuts shall not be permitted. 
 
The parcel is not served by an alley and attempts to negotiate access from the Record 
Eagle property to the east, failed.  There will only be one driveway accessing the building.  

 
X 

 
 

 
All loading and unloading areas and outside storage areas, including areas for the storage 
of trash, which are visible from residential districts or public rights-of-way shall be 
screened by a vertical screen consisting of structural and/or plant materials not less than 
six feet in height. 
 
Deliveries will occur on Front Street. The dumpster will be located in the lower level 
parking area.  
 

X  
 Exterior light sources shall be deflected downward and away from adjacent properties 

and rights-of-way and shall not violate night sky provisions of the Traverse City Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
The applicant has stated that the building lighting and landscape lighting will be dark sky 
compliant and be shielded from neighboring properties and streets.  
 

X  
 Adequate utilities shall be provided to properly serve the development.  All utilities shall 

be placed underground. 
 
There are adequate utilities to serve the development.  All utilities will be placed 
underground.  The applicant will need to provide a site utility plan meeting the 
requirements of the City Engineer as a part of the permit process.  
 



124 W. Front Street    Page 6 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
The Planning Commission or Planning Director must consider the following standards for 
granting site plan approval.   These items must be indicated on the site plan. 

 
X 

 
 Sites at which hazardous substances and potential pollutants are stored, used or 

generated shall be designed to prevent spills and discharges to the air, surface of the 
ground, groundwater, lakes, streams, rivers or wetlands. 
 
The site is part of the Brownfield Redevelopment Plan.  The storm water may not be 
allowed to be stored on site because of DEQ / DNR prohibition.  An oil-grit separator will 
be required for the site storm water system. 

 
The Special requirements for the C-4b District are as follows: 
 

(a) The predominant building wall and entryway shall face the public or private street. 
 
   Met 
 

(b) Unless determined to be impractical by the Planning Director, the building width shall 
not be less than 90 percent of the property width at the street. 

 
The building occupies 99% of the property width at the street.  

 
(c) Vertical building modulation shall be used to add variety and interest and to make a 

large building appear to be an aggregation of smaller units. Relief from a continuous 
street facing wall may be achieved with wall offsets in combination with pilasters, 
corbeling or other permanent architectural elements, however, offsets in any wall shall 
not be less than eight inches from the subject plane. 

 
Met. 
 

(d) Horizontal building modulation, like awnings, balconies and roof features shall be used 
to reduce the perceived mass of a large building.   

 
Met. 

 
(e) Fenestration, cornices and other architectural elements incorporated in new buildings 

or additions to existing buildings shall be in context with historic buildings in the area. 
 

Met. 
 

(f) Window glass planes shall be recessed at least four inches from the outside of all 
building walls to create a shadow line except in bay windows and to other projecting 
window elements. 

 
The submitted drawings are not detailed enough to determine if this requirement is met. 
 The applicant has stated that this requirement will be met and staff will confirm once 
final permit drawings have been submitted.  



124 W. Front Street    Page 7 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

 
(g) Clear or lightly tinted transparent glass shall be used for all windows facing a public 

street.  Decorative stained glass may be used for accents.   Mirrored, smoked and darkly 
tinted glass is prohibited. 
 
The submitted drawings are not detailed enough to determine if this requirement is met. 
 The applicant has stated that this requirement will be met and staff will confirm once 
final permit drawings have been submitted.  

 
(h) New buildings and additions to existing buildings, including parking structures, shall be 

constructed of durable materials utilizing the predominant building materials of 
traditional brick and stone used in the Regional Center District or constructed of 
materials of comparable aesthetic value.   
 
The design of the building will be traditional masonry construction (brick veneer, stone, 
sill accents, etc.) with numerous windows and pedestrian entrances which will be 
harmonious with, and extend (to the west) the character of the downtown and the 
general vicinity.   

 
(i) Any rooftop equipment shall be enclosed or screened from street level view using the 

same materials used for the building walls or a material which is approved by the 
Planning Director as visually compatible with the building.  

 
The rooftop mechanical equipment will be located in the center of the building roof which 
will be screened by a 4 foot tall parapet wall that goes around the entire roof structure.  

 
(j) Except for buildings that are solely residential, windows or street level activities are 

required on 50 percent of the first story street wall facing any public street.  Street level 
activities include public display space, public atriums, pedestrian entrances and exterior 
circulation. 

 
Met. 
 

 
Staff recommends that 14-SPR-01 for the property commonly known as 124 West Front Street be 
approved provided the following conditions are met.  

 
1. The applicant and owner continue to work with City Engineering and Light and Power on 

utility extensions and service lines. 
 

2. The owner shall be responsible for extending and relocating service extensions to the 
proposed building. These utilities must meet all applicable ordinance and City 
requirements. 

 
3. If relocation of public utilities is necessary, the applicant will be responsible in providing the 

City any easement necessary for relocation. 
 



124 W. Front Street    Page 8 of 8 
14-SPR-01  

4. The stormwater requirements outlined in the City Ordinance are met.  
 

5. If the public riverwalk is constructed adjacent to the parcel and extends down to Union 
Street a mutually agreeable pedestrian easement between the City and the owner shall be 
provided.  

 
6. Audio and or visual devices for managing conflicts between pedestrians and vehicular 

traffic entering and exiting the building shall be provided. 
 

7. The public sidewalk along Front Street shall extend across the proposed driveway.   



!!!!!!!!!
	

To:! Russ Soyring, Planing Director!
! !
From:!Rob Bacigalupi, Executive Director!!
Re:! 124 West Front!!
Date:!Thursday, October 2, 2014!!!
I have reviewed site plans for 124 West Front submitted by Federated Properties, 
LLC.  The purpose of this memorandum is to convey my determination that there is 
not sufficient public parking nearby to serve the proposed project without the benefit 
of proposed private parking included in the project.!!
The proposed 174,000 square foot five-story building includes 47 residential units 
and 30,000 square feet of commercial space on the first floor.  It also proposes 70 
parking spaces in the basement level.  The Zoning Ordinance prohibits private 
parking in the C-4 district with a few exceptions.  One exception includes in locations 
where it is determined that there is not sufficient public parking within 500 feet of the 
proposed project.  Parking that currently exists within a 500 foot radius of the 124 
West Front project includes permit lots P, S, T, V, and Z, as well as metered lots A, E 
H and X and metered spaces on West Front, Pine, West State and Union streets.  All 
of the permit lots with the exception of Lot S and Z are fully utilized, which in parking 
terms means occupancy of over 85%.   Lot S has approximately 15 spaces available 
making it around 82% occupied.  Lot Z has around 30 though those will be greatly 
reduced when Hotel Indigo opens.  Hotel Indigo plans on using that lot for employee 
and valet parking.  Metered spaces are heavily utilized though there is capacity on 
Pine and West State streets.!!
Permit spaces nearby would serve the projects residents and employees of the 
commercial space, if there were no parking on site.  There is clearly not enough 
permit parking nearby to serve 47 condominiums and the proposed commercial 
space.  Metered spaces would primarily serve customers of the commercial space.  
Though spaces on that stretch of West Front Street are heavily utilized open meters 



further down West Front and around the corner on Pine and State could 
accommodate many retail uses at the site.!!
Given these observations, we determine that there is not sufficient public parking 
within 500 feet of the proposed project to serve all of the parking needs of the 
proposed project at 124 West Front.!!
As always, if you have any questions regarding this memorandum, just let me know.





Agenda Item No. 5C  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
      FOR THE MEETING OF: October 7, 2014 
 
      FROM: Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider a Special Land Use Permit Request by 
Peter Starkel on behalf of Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. to 
allow for an Emergency Shelter at 517 Wellington Street, a 
property owned by the City of Traverse City 

 
       DATE: October 2, 2014 
 
The Planning Department has received a request from Peter Starkel on behalf of Safe Harbor of 
Grand Traverse, Inc. for a Special Land Use Permit to allow for an Emergency Shelter at 517 
Wellington Street, a property owned by the City of Traverse City. The proposal is to renovate the 
existing building to operate a 90-bed emergency shelter that will be open from November to April 
each year, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. daily. The building is currently under lease with the Traverse 
City Film Festival as a storage facility. A small portion of the building currently houses artifacts from 
the Con Foster collection that are managed by the Traverse City History Center.   
 
The property is zoned D2 (Development District) which allows Transitional housing and Emergency 
shelters by Special Land Use Permit. A detailed Staff Report dated October 2, 2014 is included in the 
packet. The staff report outlines how the proposed use meets the general and specific standards 
within the Special Land Use Permit chapter sections 1364.02 General Standards for Approval and 
1364.08 (q) Transitional Housing and Emergency Shelters.  
 
The decision to approve or disapprove a SLUP request by the Planning Commission must be based 
on the zoning code standards. If the proposal meets the standards, the request must be approved.  
 
If, after a Public Hearing is held, you feel Special Land Use Permit request meets the zoning code, 
then the following motion would be appropriate: 

 
I move that the Special Land Use Permit request by Peter Starkel on behalf of Safe 
Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. to allow for an Emergency Shelter at 517 Wellington 
Street, a property owned by the City of Traverse City, be approved with conditions 
as outlined in the Staff Report 14-SLUP-03 dated October 2, 2014; and further that 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission 
for their consideration. 

 
RAS:mll 
 
Attachments:  Special Land Use Permit Application Package (as revised by applicant) 
 Staff Report 14-SLUP-03 dated October 2, 2014 
 Communications related to the SLUP request 



1



Attachments  
 
 

Attachment “A” Legal Description 
 
517 Wellington Street, Traverse City, Michigan, more fully described as follows: 
 
That part of Government Lot 1, Section II, T27N, Rl1W, described as: 
 
Commencing at the NW comer of Lot 42, Block 2, Hannah, Lay & Co's Fifth 
Addition to the City of Traverse City: thence West 33 feet to the centerline of 
Wellington Street; thence South on the centerline of Wellington Street extended, 
to the northerly line of the right-of-way of the Chesapeake & Ohio Railway; 
thence easterly along the northerly line of said right-of-way to a point where the East line of Lot 31 of 
said Fifth Addition projected South intersects the Northerly line of said right-of-way; thence North on 
said projected line and East line of Lot 31 to South line of alley running East and West through said Block 
2; thence West along South line of said alley to point of beginning; and together with joint access to and 
use of a sidetrack as reserved by the first party in a deed to Herman Cox and Clinton Cox dated August 
10, 1945, recorded in Liber 153 of Deeds, Page 124. 
 

 
 
  

2



 

Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc 
P.O. Box 403 | Traverse City, Michigan |  http://GTSafeHarbor.org  | (231) 714-9590 

 
August 23, 2014 

Russ Soyring, Planning Director  
Planning Commission 
City of Traverse City 
400 Boardman Avenue  
Traverse City, MI 49684  
 
Dear Mr. Soyring and Planning Commissioners, 
 
Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. is a local non-profit organization that has been providing seasonal 
emergency shelter in the Grand Traverse region for 10 years. We are requesting a Special Land Use Permit for the 
change of use for the property located at 517 Wellington Street, Traverse City to create a Transitional Housing, 
Emergency Shelter.  
 
The approval of our request will allow Safe Harbor to continue to provide protection for all those persons 
experiencing homelessness who seek shelter.  This proposed use will have a lesser impact on the surrounding 
neighborhood than the former uses of this building as an alternative High School (105 students) or Boys and 
Girls Club (with 117 users).  
 
We look forward to meeting with you to discuss our plan in more detail.  This plan meets or exceeds all of the 
General Standards outlined in City Code 1364.02 and Specific Standards for Emergency Shelters outlined in City 
Code 1364.08 (Q).  Our proposed change of use will not increase potential discomfort of surrounding residents, 
but will more effectively tackle a well acknowledged community challenge; in a location that will lower impact on 
the adjacent Boardman Neighborhood than today.  
 
Our services will also lower emergency services costs, protect citizens from risk of death, and will contribute to 
granting requirements by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation as they stated at the July 
Commission study session.  Given Traverse City’s challenges with homelessness today, you will agree that 
protecting our citizens from the freezing in our winter climate is the best use of this building capable of housing 
the need while being properly located within the available zoned areas for an Emergency Shelter.  
 
We appreciate the service you provide our city and look forward to working with you to create this needed 
resource. We are confident that you will be impressed with our comprehensive plan and commitment to Traverse 
City.  
 
Thank you for your consideration, 

         
Peter Starkel    Christie Minervini   Ryan Hannon  
Chairperson    Chairperson, Fundraising  Goodwill Street Outreach 

3



Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc 
Special Land Use Permit Application 

517 Wellington Street 
September 2014 

 
1364.03 Special Land Use Application 
 
Present ownership of 517 Wellington Street is the City of Traverse City. Requested change of 
use by Lessee Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. 
 
Included in this package: 
 

A) Legal Description of Property (Attachment A) 
B) Proposed Site Plan (Attachment B) 
C) Existing Site Plan (Attachment C)  
D) Application Fee (Attached) 
E) Additional requested information: None requested 
F) Comprehensive Management Plan (Attachment D)  
G) Ongoing Housing Assistance Program (Attachment E) 
H) Sidewalk Site Plan and Construction Notes (Attachment F) 
I) Landscaping Bid (Attachment G)  
 

 

4



1364.02 General Standards For Approval 
 
All General Standards are met by this proposal 
 
A) 517 Wellington Street plan is harmonious with and in accordance with the general principles 
and proposals of the City Plan. It is located in the TC5 Downtown district.  This area is defined 
as pedestrian friendly, promoting social and economic diversity, and offering resilient 
resources to community members. Our application for an Emergency Shelter fits into this the 
city plan. It provides a harmonious use as defined by Special Land Use Regulation 1364.08 (q) 
and offered a new and needed use in the City. The site has access to the sidewalk network, and 
is walkable to the services this community needs to access.  Safe Harbor will construct sidewalk 
(See Attachment F) to comply with 1364.08 (q) 2 along 515 Wellington Street in the city right of 
way per engineering specifications.  
 
B) 517 Wellington Street plan is designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the 
general vicinity. The building is adjacent to a commercial roofing operation and a commercial 
printing operation. The building is, and remains harmonious to these adjacent buildings. The 
plan for this site includes refreshing the landscape (See Attachment G), adding landscaping to 
the six parking spaces that project out in front of the building, and performing a general 
cleaning of the property and building.  This will be a dramatic improvement to the existing 
state of the site. (See attached images) 
 

 
 
 

5



 
 
Six parking spaces are located in front of the Wellington facing side of the building.  These 
spaces will updated to a landscaped area (See Attachment B).  

 

 

6



 
 

 
 

C) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or planned future uses in the same 
general vicinity. The building will have very low traffic demands. Guests, who already reside in 
the TC5 district, will largely arrive by foot. This location will lower the pedestrian impact to the 
Boardman Neighborhood.  The impact will be substantially lower than previous uses: The Boys 
and Girls Club, The Alternative School or the Transportation Depot. (See the image of walkable 
pathways from this location to other services used by our guests.)  

7



 
 

D) The location will be served adequately by existing public facilities and services, such as 
highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water 
and sewage facilities and schools. 517 Wellington is adequately serviced by the existing 
infrastructure. It is centrally located for the users of the Emergency Shelter. As the map 
above indicates, a majority of the services our guests rely upon are located close by.  
Additionally, this location is close to police, fire and bus transportation (a bus stop is 
1350 feet away). 

E) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 
facilities and services. In fact, an Emergency Shelter reduces police, fire and medical 
costs by providing guests a shelter from the elements. 

F) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment or conditions 
of operation that will be detrimental to any person or property or to the general welfare 
by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, odors or water 
runoff.  517 Wellington Street will not conduct any industrial activities. 

G) Where possible, the use shall preserve, renovate and restore historic buildings or 
landmarks affected by the development.  This is not a historic building.  

8



H) Elements will relate the design characteristics of an individual structure or development 
to existing or planned developments in a harmonious manner, resulting in a coherent 
overall development pattern and streetscape.  As a zoned D district, the improvements 
Safe Harbor will make to sidewalk, landscaping, the repurposing of 6 parking spaces 
located East of the building entrance. Building clean up will be consistent with other 
businesses within this Depot Area D district. It will operate as a mixed use building with 
offices and residential areas. Additionally, it brings a new supported use to the area.  

I) The use is consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district in which it is 
proposed.   

J) The specific requirements outlined in each applicable section of this Zoning Code are 
satisfied. See next section 1364.08 (Q).  

  
 
1364.08 (q) Transitional Housing and Emergency Shelters Standards For Approval 
All requirements for Transitional housing and Emergency shelters are met with this proposal 
 
1) The facility is fully enclosed in a building located in a D-2 District.  
2) The site is located within a ½ mile of a bus stop connected by sidewalks or bike trails. The 
map below indicates the closest bus stop, measured to be 1350 feet from the building.  The 
517 Wellington Plan includes constructing sidewalk per engineering specification along 515 
Wellington Street to Eighth Street (See Attachment F).  
 

 
 

9



3) The lot is not located within 1,500 feet of another lot devoted to transitional housing, 
emergency shelter. To our knowledge, there is no other Emergency Shelter in the city limits.  
The closest facility would be the Goodwill Inn.  
 

 
Goodwill Inn 
 
4) The facility shall have a maximum of 100 beds and/or sleeping pads. Safe Harbor, in 
response to neighborhood and planning commissioner concerns, Safe Harbor requests in 
writing to reduce this number of beds to 90.  This meets our projected needs while addressing 
community concerns. Compared to other allowable uses, including restaurant, 4-story 
apartment building, or commercial office, this use will be a very low impact to the 
infrastructure and low traffic use.  
 
5) The building provides 50 square feet of heated building space per person staying overnight 
at the facility. The facility has 9,600 feet of heated space (measuring 80’ x 120’) This allows for 
106 feet per person (9,600/90=106) at the 90 person limit.  This allows far more than the 
minimum required in the ordinance and more than we are requesting in this plan.  
 
6) The operator of the Emergency shelter will provide continuous, on-site supervision by an 
employee or volunteer during all hours of operation. We operate from November to April of 
each year, from 6:00pm – 8:00am each day.  Our 2,100 volunteers supported by Goodwill 
Street Outreach’s experienced staff will provide adequate staffing.  

10



7) The operator of the facility has a written management plan (See Attachment D) including, as 
applicable, staffing levels, provisions for staff and volunteer training, neighborhood outreach, 
length of stay of residents, hours of operation, crime prevention, security, screening of 
residents to insure compatibility and the mission of service provided at the facility. The 
management plan shall establish a maximum length of time which clients may be 
accommodated.  
 
8) The operator has an ongoing housing assistance program (See Attachment E) on the 
premises to place the residents into permanent housing and maintain a list of all persons 
residing at the facility. In 2013, this program helped 49 area individuals leave homelessness.  
 
9) Parking requirements have been determined by the Planning Director based on the intensity 
of the operation described in the management plan as: 17 Parking Spots (12 for guests, 7 for 
staff).  The current parking lot, after improvements, will accommodate 22 vehicles, plus 4 
spaces on Wellington Street. (See Attachment B). 

11



Attachments  
 
 

Attachment “A” Legal Description 
 
517 Wellington Street, Traverse City, Michigan, more fully described as follows: 
 
That part of Government Lot 1, Section II, T27N, Rl1W, described as: 
 
Commencing at the NW comer of Lot 42, Block 2, Hannah, Lay & Co's Fifth 
Addition to the City of Traverse City: thence West 33 feet to the centerline of 
Wellington Street; thence South on the centerline of Wellington Street extended, 
to the northerly line of the right-of-way of the Chesapeake & Ohio Railway; 
thence easterly along the northerly line of said right-of-way to a point where the East line of Lot 31 of 
said Fifth Addition projected South intersects the Northerly line of said right-of-way; thence North on 
said projected line and East line of Lot 31 to South line of alley running East and West through said Block 
2; thence West along South line of said alley to point of beginning; and together with joint access to and 
use of a sidetrack as reserved by the first party in a deed to Herman Cox and Clinton Cox dated August 
10, 1945, recorded in Liber 153 of Deeds, Page 124. 
 

 
 
  

13



 

 

 

Operations Plan 
Written Management Plan 

(Attachment D) 

 

14

Peter
Typewritten Text
September 2014



Executive Summary of Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse 
 
Structure and Operations 
 
Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse is a Non‐Profit Corporation formed in the State of Michigan.  It is 
comprised of approximately 2,100 volunteers that are organized through a collection of 23 Churches 
located in the Grand Traverse region.  We are an all volunteer corporation with a three tier management 
structure; Executive Board, Steering Committee and contracted Goodwill Supervisors.  Each tier has its 
own leadership structure.  This structure has been in place since 2008, with the exception of the 
Executive Board, which was added in 2014.  
 
The Executive Board is comprised of 7 members and includes a Chair, Vice‐Chair, Treasurer, Secretary, 
Fundraising Chair and 2 at‐large members.  The Executive Board is responsible for the operation of the 
building, management of the corporation and community partnerships, and the finances of the 
organization. Each executive may assemble a committee to assist them in their work.  The committee 
members generally come from the Steering Committee. The executive board is nominated and elected 
by the steering committee and may include church representatives or community members at‐large.  
 
The steering committee is comprised of a representative from each participating church, and is 
responsible for the operation of the emergency shelter. Each participating church has a representative 
on the steering committee.  Each church also has an alternate representative.  The steering committee 
has a leadership board comprising of a Chairperson (also the Vice‐Chair of the executive board), 
Nominating/Elections, Scheduling Manager, Supplies Manager, Secretary, Health and Safety Leader, and 
Training/Policy Leader. 
 
The third tier of management is our professional staff.  Safe Harbor contracts with Goodwill Industries of 
NW Michigan to provide a trained shelter management team.  The Goodwill Supervisor has several roles 
during a shift (generally 5:30p – 11p):  A) To control the “check in” process (including background checks 
and bag searches); B) To make decisions on guest behavior issues and policing of policies; C) To work in 
an Outreach role to help guests access services available to them (including housing and support 
opportunities); D) Maintain the security of the medical lock box; and  E) Coordinate hourly smoke 
breaks.  
 
Our “Fall/ Winter Season” is determined by the weather, but generally, we operate between November 
and April.   The emergency shelter operates in a decentralized structure, with a host church leading on a 
weekly basis.  Each hosting church has a coordinator and a volunteer leadership team.  For example: 
Christmas / New Years weeks are hosted by Presbyterian Church of Traverse City.  This church has a 
coordinator and its own roster of volunteers.  Occasionally, the lead church many receive help from a 
supporting church.  In these cases, the lead church’s coordinator is still in charge of the weekly 
operation.  A software program,  “Volunteer Spot,” is used to allow volunteers to sign up and exchange 
shifts 24/7.  Each volunteer must complete a volunteer form that allows Goodwill’s team to perform 
background checks. Generally, volunteers come directly through the churches, though we accept 
members from the community‐at‐large.  
 
Each day of operation, the shelter is broken into 5 shifts: Breakfast (usually 4 people), Evening Host (3 
people), Supper (4 people), and Overnight (2 women and 2 men).  There are a total of 105 individual 
roles in a typical week.  Often, volunteers will serve in several shifts in their hosting week.  The staffing 

15



may be adjusted based on the number of guests. The numbers listed above are the minimum (see our 
staffing grid as part of the Operations Plan).  Additional volunteers may be added from the community‐
wide “call in” list at the discrepancy of the Goodwill Supervisor.  
 
Training of volunteers is conducted at the facility on an on‐going basis by the Goodwill team.  Each 
church coordinator is responsible for their volunteers to complete the 3‐hour training program. As 
policies are adjusted annually, every volunteer is required to update their training.  
 
2014 – 2015 Executive Board Members 
Peter Starkel – Chairperson 
Mike McDonald – Vice Chairperson, Steering Committee Chair 
Christie Minvervini – Chairperson, Fundraising 
Wayne Sterenberg – Treasurer 
Mike Hornby – Secretary 
Gary Clous – At‐Large 
David Rapson – At‐Large  
 
2014 – 2015 Steering Committee Members 
Ryan Hannon  Goodwill Supervisor  
Cecil McNally  Goodwill Industries 
Connie & Ralph 
Hintsala 

Redeemer Lutheran 

Dave Speirs  Church of Christ 
Doug Baumgardner  Church of the Living God 
Doug Seeley  New Hope Community 
Gary Clous  First Congregational 
Paul Hubbell  St. Patrick 
Harry Hubbell  Nazarene 
Irene Scott  Northern Lakes Community 
Jeff Lewis  TB United Methodist 
Jeff O'Brien  TCPD & St. Francis 
Jenika Burden  Grace Episcopal 
Jennifer Betts  Scheduling 
Jim Hutchison  Bethlehem Lutheran 
Julie Greene  Bay Pointe Community 
Kathy Dally  Central United Methodist 
Kent Anderson  West Bay Covenant 
MaryHelen Dumon  St. Joseph Parish 
Molly VanZandt  Bayview Wesleyan 
Nancy Bennett  West Side Community 
Peter Starkel  Presbyterian Church  
Sandy Scarbrough  First Christian  
Sarah Montgomery  Unitarian Universalist 
Tony Nelson  Faith Reformed 
Wayne Sterenberg  St. Francis 
 

16



 

Funding  
 
The Grand Traverse region is considered a “rural area” by the Federal government.  As a result, there is 
no state or federal funding for seasonal emergency shelters.  Safe Harbor operates completely on 
donations.  Within the church network, we operate with a current an annual budget of $27,500.  This 
includes compensation for Goodwill Supervisors and supplies.  Our policy is to have one year of 
operational funding in reserves at all times.  Our projected annual operating budget is estimated at 
$314,200.  $238,400 of this amount is donated with volunteer labor and food provided by Food Rescue.  
 
Our fundraising is conducted by a fundraising committee, lead by an executive board member. We are 
funded by Grants, the Church Community, our Volunteers and the Community at large.   We have an 
annual funding goal of $75,800.  This is a very manageable goal with our current funding levels and the 
large Safe Harbor support network.  We have already received a $5,000 grant for help with board 
training, strategic planning, and fundraising (not reflected in the following budget). 
 
 Management  

 Bookkeeping       600  
 Copying and Printing     1,500  
 Contractual Services (Goodwill)   15,000  
 D & O Liability Insurance     1,500  
 Liability and Property Insurance   3,000  
 Office Equipment and Supplies   500  
 Postage       200  
 Miscellaneous       500  
 Supplies       200  

           23,000  
Fundraising  

 Advertising/Website     1,500  
 Copying/Printing/Postage   500  
 Miscellaneous       300  

 2,300 

 Program Services  
 Rent         5,000  
 Electricity       24,000  

   Water/Sewer/Trash     5,000  
 Phone/ Internet      2,400  
 Fire Alarm Monitoring     850  
 Security System       1,500  
 Portable Toilet       1,500  
 Restroom/Cleaning Supplies   1,500  
 Equipment       500  
 Labor (Volunteer*)     158,400  
 Meals (Food Rescue*)     80,000  
 Misc. Food/Snacks/Supplies  2,400 
 Guest Program Supplies     5,000  
 Volunteer Accident Insurance   350  
 Miscellaneous       500  

288,900  
 
 Total Expense:         314,200 
 Total Hard Expense:       75,800 

* These Costs are donated services

Facility 

Safe Harbor will make leaseholder improvements to bring the space to code in order to convert 517 
Wellington into an emergency shelter. Security cameras, downward facing lighting and privacy 
landscaping will be part of the improvements. The facility will also be re‐purposed to add laundry, 
kitchen, showers, computer and internet for use during shelter operations. Additionally, year‐round 
meeting space will be developed and made available to conduct housing applications, mentoring 
support, social services paperwork and counseling services via partnerships with other organizations 
(through our membership in the Greater Grand Traverse Continuum of Care). The goal is to assist street 
homeless into permanent supportive housing as it becomes available.  

17



The Shelter operations will be conducted by Safe Harbor’s Steering Committee.  The sleeping space will 
be housed in the rear 4,800 square feet of the building, allowing for more than the required 50 square 
feet per guest required in the specific ordinance.  The entrance to the Shelter will be on the side of the 
building, and will be shielded from the street by the landscaping, creating a private area for guests.  
 
The front of the building will house meeting spaces for our community partners.  These organizations 
will contract to use the offices for appointment‐only meetings with persons experiencing homelessness.  
This will operate year round, generally from Tuesday to Saturday 8a – Noon. The rest of the facility will 
be secured during these hours, and guests will not be permitted to be in the facility without an 
appointment.   This space will be managed by the Executive Board.  
 
We have always worked in cooperation of the Police and Fire departments.  Safe Harbor has been 
credited as reducing the number of daily calls by emergency services leaders.  Safe Harbor does not 
create additional costs for the city, in fact, we reduce the cost of city operations.  The service we provide 
at no charge to the city is a significant benefit to the community.   Additionally, we have an emergency 
contact, Ryan Hannon of Goodwill Street Outreach, who is available to the community coordinate 
immediate response should there been the need.  
 
Safe Harbor Building Budget (for preliminary purposes only)  
 

 Firewall and Doors     35,000  
 Interior Walls       25,000  
 Interior Finishes     40,000  
 Doors         15,000  
 Windows       2,500  
 Specialties       5,000 
 Flooring      10,000 
 Kitchen       30,000  
 Laundry       10,000  
 Computers/ Printers     6,000  
 Plumbing/ Commercial    40,000  
 HVAC         45,000  

Sprinklers       45,000  
 Fire Alarm       5,000  

 Alarm         2,500  

 Cameras       5,000  

 Phone/ Internet     5,000  

 Wiring Upgrades     20,000  

Interior Lighting     15,000  

Landscaping       10,000  

Exterior Lighting     5,000  

Signage       5,000 

Furnishings:       6,000  

 Total     387,000 
 
 
Notes: Currently, we have commitments from an architect and project manager willing to serve gratis.  
Other individuals have stepped forward ready to donate insulation, plumbing products and services and 
building expertise. These in‐kind donations are not reflected in the budget above. 
 
For more detailed information about our proposal and finances please visit  
http://gtsafeharbor.org/building/safe‐harbors‐proposal‐to‐city‐of‐traverse‐city/ 
 

18



Table of Contents 

1.   Seasonal Shelter Operations (November through April) 

2.   Meeting Center Operations  

3.   Facilities Management 

4.   Security Plan 

5.   Rules and Policies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19



Seasonal Shelter Operations 

General 

The Seasonal Shelter will normally be open for overnight guests from the first full week in November 
through the last full week in April.   It may be necessary to open up to two weeks earlier and stay open 
up to two weeks later in case of severe weather early or late in the season.  In past years, it has not been 
necessary to do this. 
 
Each week, an individual church or two or more churches working together will be responsible for 
providing volunteers to staff the positions listed below except for the evening supervisor/case manager 
who will be contracted through Goodwill.  Individual church coordinators will be responsible for 
scheduling volunteers for the roles listed below in advance of the week the church is scheduled to 
provide volunteers.  Churches will use “Volunteer Spot” software or other comparable methods to 
schedule volunteers.  The week will begin on Saturday evening and end the following Saturday morning.  
Weekly schedules for the churches will be established before the start of the Shelter season if at all 
possible.   
 
The Seasonal Shelter will be open for guests from 6:00 pm each day until 8:00 am the following morning.  
The Shelter may be open for extended hours during periods of extreme cold (temperatures below 10 
degrees Fahrenheit with wind chills below zero) or on Holidays.  The decision to extend hours will be 
made jointly by the Goodwill Supervisor and the volunteer coordinator for the church that has 
responsibility that week.  In past years the shelter has been open for extended hours ten days or less 
each season. 
 

Daily Operations 

Daily Operations will be divided into three shifts: 
  5:30 pm – 9:00 pm Dinner and evening hosts 
  8:45 pm – 6:45 am Overnight staff 
  6:30 am – 9:00 am Breakfast and Clean up 
There shall be a designated volunteer shift leader from the host church for each shift.    
 
Following are the positions and responsibilities for each shift: 
 
Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager:  Safe Harbor will continue to contract with Goodwill for a 
Supervisor/Case Manager to be present each day of the Seasonal Shelter from 5:30 pm until after “lights 
out” at 11:00 pm.   The Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager will have the following responsibilities: 

 Perform a bag search on all incoming guests 

 Handle any rule violations by guests 

 Supervise hourly smoke breaks from 6:45 pm until 10:45 pm 

 Dispense prescription and non‐prescription medications to guests (see policy on prescription 
medications) 

 Interview and gather information from new guests and perform background checks on all guests 

 Notify police dispatch of the number of guests present 
 

20



Volunteer Team Leader:   There will be a designated volunteer team leader for each shift.  
Responsibilities include: 

 Make sure all volunteers are present, signed in and have a name tag 

 Make sure volunteers know the locations of fire alarms, extinguishers and evacuation plan 

 Know the location of first aid kits and the location of disposable gloves if needed for clean up 
after accidents 

 Identify which volunteers have cell phones for emergency needs 

 Responsible for dispensing prescription and non‐prescription medications when Goodwill 
Supervisor/Case Manager is not present 

 Ensure that all supplies are adequate and notify Church Coordinator (or designated church 
supply coordinator) if any supplies are needed for the next day 

 Ensure that all problems are entered in the incident log.  Make sure serious problems are 
communicated to the Church Coordinator and Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager 

 Participate in the briefing of all volunteers at each shift change noting issues with guests and 
making sure keys for medications are passed on 

 “De‐brief” new volunteers before they leave to clarify questions or help put their experience in  
context if necessary 

 
Dinner Volunteers:  There will be at least four dinner volunteers each evening.  Responsibilities include: 

 Volunteers should arrive by 5:30 pm and have dinner ready to serve by 6:00 pm.  If more prep 
time is needed, volunteers may arrange for early arrival with their Church Coordinator 

 Volunteers will serve the meal.  Guests should not serve themselves 

 Serving will end at 7:30 pm.  Volunteers should check with the Team Leader to see if any meals 
need to be set aside for guests who have arranged for late arrival 

 Volunteers will clean and put away all dishes, glasses, cups, silverware and serving utensils used 
during dinner, clean the kitchen and serving area and put out snacks for the evening before 
leaving (dinner volunteers may leave when the above tasks are complete). 

 
Evening Hosts:   There will be at least three evening host volunteers, in addition to the Volunteer Team 
Leader, each evening.  Evening hosts will arrive at 5:30 pm and stay until turnover to Overnight Hosts is 
complete.  Evening Host responsibilities include: 

 One volunteer to assist with guest sign in log making sure all names are complete and legible 

 One volunteer to assist with medication drop off as guests sign in 

 One volunteer to direct new guests to a waiting area 

 Report any disruptions, altercations or confrontations to the Goodwill Supervisor and/or 
Volunteer Team Leader 

 Showers will be available for guests from 7:00 pm until 10:00 pm each evening.  Guests will sign 
up for showers.  One evening host volunteer or an assigned guest will call each guest on the list 
in order, check them in, give them a towel and ask them to return the towel and check out 
within fifteen minutes.   

 Visit with guests throughout the evening and provide fellowship 

 Assist the Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager and/or Volunteer Team Leader as requested 
 
Overnight Hosts:  There will be at least four volunteer Overnight Hosts (at least two male and two 
female).  One of the Overnight Hosts will be designated as the Volunteer Team Leader for that shift.  
Overnight Hosts will arrive by 8:45 pm and will stay until turnover to Morning Breakfast and Clean Up 
Crew is complete.   Overnight Host responsibilities include: 

21



 Visit with guests and assist Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager and Volunteer Team Leader as 
required until “lights out” at 11:00 pm. 

 Wash and dry towels from showers 

 After 11:00 pm: 
o At least one volunteer will be awake at all times 
o No guests are to be admitted even if they are brought by the police unless the guest has 

made prior arrangements due to working late and arrives in appropriate condition 
o Doors remain locked until 6:00 am.  Any guest who chooses to leave after 11:00 pm will 

not be readmitted until 6:00 pm the following day. 
o Provide early wake up calls for guests as requested 
o Make coffee to be available at 6:00 am.  Unlock doors for smoke breaks starting at 6:00 

am 
 
Morning Breakfast and Clean Up Crew:  There will be at least four volunteers on the Morning Breakfast 
and Clean Up Crew, one of which will be designated as Volunteer Team Leader.   Volunteers will arrive 
by 6:30 am and take over from the Overnight shift at that time.  It is our intent to have at least two 
guests identified each day to assist this crew with clean up duties.  Responsibilities for the Morning 
Breakfast and Clean Up Crew include: 

 Put out continental breakfast items including cereal, bread, condiments, juice and milk. 

 Make sure all guests are awake and moving by 7:00 am 

 Make sure all guests tidy up their area and put their blanket and any other items they are 
leaving in their tote and close their tote. 

 All guests (except those staying to help with clean up) should leave the building by 8:00 am and 
the building entrance should be locked at that time. 

 Clean all restrooms 

 Fold towels from dryers and place by shower areas 

 Wipe down tables in the common area and vacuum the common area 

 Make sure all breakfast food is cleaned up and put away 

 Wash and put away all breakfast dishes and clean up the kitchen 

 Make sure all supplies are stocked for the next day 

 Take out garbage and trash and make sure all trash containers have new liners 

 Make sure all medications are locked up and the key placed in the designated area 

 On Saturday mornings, have guests take all mats and tubs out of the sleeping areas and pile 
them in designated locations 

 Make sure the exterior of the building and the grounds are cleaned up 

 Make sure all entrances and exits are secure before leaving 

 
Weekly Operations 

Saturday Morning Clean Up Crew:  The Church(es) will provide a clean‐up crew of at least four 
volunteers on Saturday mornings.  It would be anticipated that the clean‐up crew would be augmented 
by at least two guests.  Clean‐up crew members will arrive between 7:30 am and 8:00am and have the 
following responsibilities: 

 Kitchen should be cleaned and disinfected per kitchen guidelines 

 All hard surface floors will be mopped and all carpeted areas thoroughly vacuumed, this is 
particularly important in the sleeping areas. 

 All restrooms should be thoroughly cleaned 

22



 All tables and chairs should be cleaned 

 Dusting should be done where required 

 All trash and garbage containers should be emptied and contents taken to the dumpster 

 All toilet paper and towels should be restocked in the restrooms 

 Make sure there are adequate paper supplies (toilet paper and towels) for the next week in the 
storage area 

 Make sure the exterior of the building and the grounds are cleaned up 

 Make sure all entrances and exits are secure and the alarm system is set before leaving 
 
Volunteer Training:  Each church will be responsible for holding volunteer training sessions prior to the 
week(s) they are volunteering at the building.   Following will be included in training sessions: 

 Review of volunteer roles and responsibilities 

 Review of guest rules and volunteer “dos and don’ts” 

 Review of emergency evacuation plans 

 Review of building security plans 

 Review of any new rules specific to operating within compliance in a public building 

 Review of conflict resolution steps  
 
In addition, volunteer training will be offered, at the building during the first year of operation in the 
building, on a weekly basis on Saturday mornings from 10:00 am to Noon during the Seasonal Shelter.  
This training will be conducted by Steering Team members and will include all of the topics above and 
also an orientation tour of the new building.  Church volunteers may choose to attend the training at 
their church or the training at the building. 

 
Staffing Grid: Our volunteer staff has been designed to accommodate up to 55 guests.  As the number 
of guests increase, the staffing levels will be adjusted to manage the shelter.  These additional 
volunteers will be scheduled based on guest numbers projections.  Additionally, if we have not properly 
staffed up, the communitywide “On Call” volunteers will be available to respond with shorter notice.  
 
Guests  Breakfast  Evening Host  Supper  Overnight  Goodwill 

0 ‐ 55  4  3  4  4  1 

56 ‐ 70  4  4  5  5  2 

70 ‐ 90  5  6  6  6  2 

23



Meeting Center Operations 
 

General 
 
The administrative areas of the building will be made available for use by those who provide assistance 
to the homeless community to meet with guests on a year round basis.  These services would be offered 
during evening hours on months the Seasonal Shelter is in operation and Monday through Saturday 
from 8:00 am until Noon during months the Seasonal Shelter is not in operation.  Agencies that might 
use the building are Goodwill Street Outreach, Community Mental Health, Veterans Affairs, Counseling 
Services, Street Advocate mentors, Housing Agencies, Speak Up Magazine and other social service 
agencies.  These are intended as examples and are not meant to be a limiting list.  This use would be for 
individual and small group meetings with guests.   
 
During the months the Seasonal Shelter is not in operation, the person hosting the meeting would sign 
up for the building use and would be provided a pass code for entry into the administrative areas.  It 
would not be our intention to have volunteer staffing present at the building during these meetings.  
Sleeping areas and restrooms in the sleeping areas would be locked during this time and would not be 
accessed by hosts or their guests.  The building would only be open to those guests that have 
appointments with the meeting host.  Guests would not be allowed to drop‐in or congregate at the 
building when the Seasonal Shelter is not in operation.  It would be the responsibility of the meeting 
host to ensure that all people have left the building at the end of each meeting and that the building is 
secured including setting the alarm system.    
 

Bi‐Weekly Clean‐Up 
 
During the period when the seasonal shelter is not in operation (May through October), churches will be 
signed up to provide a volunteer clean‐up crew of three to four people to clean the building on a bi‐
weekly basis.  This clean‐up will take place every other Saturday at a time to be determined by the 
responsible church.  The clean‐up crew will have the following responsibilities: 

 Kitchen should be cleaned and disinfected per kitchen guidelines 

 Administrative area hard surface floors will be mopped and all carpeted areas thoroughly 
vacuumed 

 Administrative area restrooms should be thoroughly cleaned 

 Administrative area tables and chairs should be cleaned 

 Dusting should be done where required 

 All trash and garbage containers should be emptied and contents taken to the dumpster 

 All toilet paper and towels should be restocked in the restrooms 

 Sleeping areas and restrooms should be checked to make sure they have not been disturbed 
and are clean. 

 Make sure there are adequate paper supplies (toilet paper and towels) for the next two weeks 
in the storage area 

 Make sure the exterior of the building and the grounds are cleaned up 

 Make sure all entrances and exits are secure and the alarm system is set before leaving 
 

24



Facilities Management 
 
The Board of Directors shall establish a volunteer Facilities Management Committee chaired by a 
member of the Board or the Steering Team and consisting of at least five members selected from Safe 
Harbor churches.   The Facilities Management Committee will do the following: 

 Meet at least bi‐monthly   

 Have responsibility for overall maintenance including upkeep and repair of the structure, repair 
and/or replacement of furnishings and fixtures, and maintenance of the grounds.  

 Have a designated member on call to deal with emergency repairs and an established list of 
vendors to call for those repairs.   

 Take major expenditures, in excess of $500, to the Board of Directors for approval.   

 Have a member of the committee take an every other day walk through of the building during 
the months the Seasonal Shelter is not in operation. 

 Take responsibility for execution of the Security Plan 

 Ensure that the building is kept in compliance with all City building codes 
 

25



Security Plan 
 

Following are the security plans for the building: 

 The building will have an alarm system to prevent unauthorized entry 

 All exterior doors will be locked at all times except the guest entrance which will be unlocked 
only between 6:00 pm and 7:00 pm and 6:00 am to 8:00 am during seasonal shelter operations. 

 All interior doors will have “panic bars” so they may be used in emergencies, but doors other 
than the main volunteer and guest entrances will have alarms that will sound if they are opened. 

 The volunteer entrance will be accessed via a keypad entry.   Each church and agency using the 
building will be issued a unique code so that who is coming and going can be monitored over 
time. 

 Exterior lighting on a timer and motion detector system will ensure that the exterior of the 
building and areas around the building are well lighted during hours of darkness. 

 Emergency evacuation plans will be developed for use in case of emergency and posted in 
appropriate places in the building.  Review of emergency plans will be part of volunteer training. 

 There will be a security camera system in place. 
 

26



Rules and Policies 
 

Safe Harbor Guest Rules 
 
The following rules are for anyone staying as part of the seasonal shelter program.  Rules will be posted 
prominently in the building and reviewed with all new guests.  Rules are for everyone’s safety, comfort 
and dignity.  Any violation of these rules may result in a termination of a guest’s participation in the Safe 
Harbor program.   
 

 All items brought onto the property are subject to search 

 Once you have signed in, you are only allowed to leave the building during scheduled smoke 
breaks.  If you leave after signing in you will not be allowed to re‐enter for any reason until the 
next evening 

  The building will open at 6:00 p.m. every night.  Doors are locked at 7:00 p.m., “Lights Out” at 
11:00 p.m.  The building will then be secured until 6:00 a.m. the next morning.  (Special 
arrangements will be made for guests working later). 

 Upon entering on their first night, guests will receive ONE mat, ONE blanket, and ONE assigned 
tub to keep their belongings.  Tubs can be searched for contraband at any time by staff.  

 NO SMOKING inside the building.  Supervised 15 min. smoke breaks in a designated area, 6:45 
p.m. ‐ 7:45 p.m. ‐ 8:45 p.m. ‐ 9:45 p.m. & 10:45 p.m. 

 NO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ANYWHERE ON BUILDING PROPERTY. 

 NO DRUGS OR ILLEGAL SUBSTANCES ANYWHERE ON BUILDING PROPERTY. 

 ABSOLUTELY NO WEAPONS OF ANY KIND ARE PERMITTED!!!  If you have one; please turn it in 
to the Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manger at sign‐in time.  Legal weapons will be returned when 
guests leave at 8:00 am. 

 NO ABUSIVE/PROFANE LANGUAGE OR DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOR 

 The Goodwill staff and church volunteers are in charge of the building.  Please direct any     
questions to them. 

 Men and women are assigned separate sleeping areas by the staff and volunteers.    

 Prior to breakfast each morning, please spray and wipe down your own mattress  

 DO NOT leave any items that do not fit into your assigned Tub in the building.  Be prepared to 
leave the building by 8:00 a.m. each morning 

 
 

Safe Harbor Policies 
 
Guest Admission Policy:   In pursuit of assuring the safety of both its guests and its volunteers, Safe 
Harbor will take one of the following actions in response to any individual’s request for admission to the 
nightly shelter. The action taken will be as a result of a (Safe Harbor background check) on said 
individual. 

 For individuals with a current expulsion from Safe Harbor shelter, no admission will be granted. 

 For individuals seeking readmission after expulsion, a probationary period will be granted. 
Probationary period to be determined the Goodwill Supervisor. 

 Individuals will be admitted after signing nightly compliance / sign‐in sheet. 
 

27



Guest Admission Policy:   Guests are provided shelter based on need. Verification of homelessness is 
determined by Goodwill Supervisor. Individuals will be admitted after signing nightly compliance / sign‐
in sheet. Admittance of late arrival is determined by the Goodwill Supervisor. Law enforcement referrals 
and first time users are taken into consideration. Pre‐arranged activities warranting late admittance may 
include, but are not limited to:  

 Employment 

 Self‐help groups 
 
No admittance is granted after 11 pm unless pre‐arranged employment is verified. 
 
In pursuit of assuring the safety of both its guests and its volunteers, a probationary period may be 
granted following a loss of privileges at Safe Harbor. For individuals with a current loss of privileges from 
Safe Harbor shelter, no admission will be granted. 
 
 
Prescription Drugs Policy: 

 All medically urgent prescriptions (inhalers, nitro tablets etc.) may be kept by the guests.   All 
other prescription medication are given to Goodwill Supervisor or check‐in volunteer at sign‐in 
time. Prescriptions will be placed in a bag with guests’ name on label, and then placed into the 
Lockable Safe Harbor Med box. There is no inventory list or receipts for locked Meds. 

 Keys will be made accessible to overnight team leaders. 

  Guests’ will take medications as per labeling and then return medications to box. Staff and 
volunteers will not dispense medications from box. Guests will take medications in the presence 
of staff or volunteers.  No talking will occur during this time. Guests may retrieve any or all 
medications in the morning when leaving. 

  The evening sign‐in sheet will include a disclaimer which states; ‘by signing this sheet I    
acknowledge that I have turned in all prescriptions. I acknowledge that I am fully responsible for 
any prescriptions not turned in, and that any sales, distribution or misuse of these will be 
grounds for my expulsion from Safe Harbor’. 

 
Alcoholic Beverages Policy:  There is no alcohol allowed anywhere on building property as per guest 
rules of Safe Harbor.  If guests do arrive with alcoholic beverages they will be turned over to the 
Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager and disposed of immediately.  If guest is caught with alcohol in the 
building, loss of Safe Harbor privileges will occur  for the night and he/she is subject to suspension. 
 
Youth Volunteer Policy:   Youth under the age of 12 years are not allowed to volunteer at Safe Harbor.  
Youth age 12 to 18 may volunteer with the following guidelines: 

 Must be sponsored by a parent, guardian, or youth group director that sign a permission form. 

 Youth volunteers will read and observe the following rules: 
o No youth volunteers are allowed in sleeping areas at any time. 
o Youth volunteers should remain in social area. Any youth leaving social area, for any 

reason, must inform adult supervisor before leaving. 
o Available hours for age 12‐18 youth volunteers will be from 6:00 p.m. ‐ 10:00 p.m.  

 
Suspension Policy:  The following guidelines will be used regarding suspensions for breaking the rules: 

 No  alcoholic beverages, drugs or illegal substances are allowed anywhere on the building 
grounds.  Incidents of possession or use of alcohol, drugs or illegal substances on property will 

28



result in: 
o First offense – ban for the night 
o Second offense – three night ban 
o Third offense – one week ban 
o Fourth offense – ban for season 

 No smoking is allowed anywhere in the building.  Incidents of smoking in the building will result 
in: 

o First offense – one week ban 
o Second offense – ban for season 

 No weapons of any kind are permitted on the building property.  Incidents of possession of a 
weapon will result in an immediate permanent ban. 

 No physical violence is allowed.  Incidents of physical violence will depend upon severity and 
could result in a permanent ban. 

 Suspensions may also occur as a result of physical or verbal behavior that poses a perceived 
threat to the safety of volunteers or other guests.  Such suspensions may be mandated at the 
discretion of the Goodwill Supervisor/Case Manager. 

 
 
         
         

 
 
 

 
 

29



 
Housing 

Ongoing Housing Assistance Program 
(Attachment E) 

 
 
Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. contracts with Goodwill Industries of Northwestern Michigan 
to provide expert staffing of our Emergency Shelter.  The Goodwill staff is on-premise everyday 
the shelter operates. Safe Harbor will contract with Goodwill staff to administrator the housing 
assistance program.   
 
Goodwill’s Street Outreach provides the most comprehensive housing assistance program to 
persons experiencing homelessness on the street in our region. This program brings resources 
to end homelessness directly to where people experiencing homelessness are. This includes, 
but is not limited to: downtown alleys and streets, parks, riverbanks, lake shores, wooded 
areas, abandoned buildings, encampments, community meal locations, drop in centers and Safe 
Harbor.  
  
Resources to end homelessness include warm referrals to housing subsidy options and 
agencies, warm referrals to housing supports, assistance in obtaining necessary documentation 
required for all housing options, verification of homelessness, on-going connections to housing 
program wait lists, housing location services, accompaniment to viewing housing options, 
acting as a landlord liaison, and providing warm transfers in the transition into housing. This 
also includes representation in the SOAR process and referral and support to employment 
programs. 

30

Peter
Typewritten Text
September 2014



 
Street Outreach uses a housing orientation to outreach. We provide practical interim supports 
to obtain identification, access income and obtain means to meet basic needs. We help support 
ways to obtain mail, phone/computer access, and reunification with family. 
 
Street Outreach has partnerships with a safety, as well as housing, focus: 
 

Accessing healthcare services 
• Working with Munson to coordinate discharge 
• Applying for healthcare coverage 
• Coordinating primary healthcare appointments 

 
Accessing mental health services 

• Referring to and assisting in access to Community Mental Health (CMH), 
Traverse Health Clinic mental health services, and Munson Behavior Health 

 
Accessing Addiction services 

• Assisting in accessing sub-acute detoxification 
• Assisting in access of substance use disorder treatment interventions 
including transportation to long-term facilities   

 
Working with Parks and Recreation staff 

• Providing shelter and housing options in “move along” situations 
 

Working with faith community 
• Helping coordinate valuable resources needed for ending homelessness 
• Supporting and collaborating with the drop-in ministries of Jubilee House 
and Central United Methodist Church Community Outreach 
• Partnering with Safe Harbor 
• Coordinating with Local businesses 
• Intervening in non-emergency situations 
• Providing shelter and housing options in “move along” situations 

 
Partnering with the Police Department 

• Assisting in non-emergency interventions 
• Ensuring acknowledgement of relocation needs while simultaneously 
providing shelter and housing options 

 
Coordinating with the Jail 

• Administering the vulnerability index 
• Coordinating discharge plans 

 

31



Partnering with emergency shelters 
• Referring and assisting in accessing the Goodwill Inn 
• Counseling and coaching in transition from streets to shelter 

 
Working with GT County Mental Health and Sobriety Courts 

• Participating in panel discussions and case review 
• Referring clients 
• Assisting in care management of Street Outreach clients 

 
Street Outreach uses a vulnerability index to determine acuity and to ensure coordinated entry 
into the (homelessness) response system. We are working to develop and implement a central 
registry for permanent supportive housing and housing with supports (including rapid re-
housing) across the system with understanding that people will be matched to the housing 
program best suited to fit his/her needs while simultaneously prioritizing available housing and 
support to the most vulnerable identified. Street Outreach participates in the Continuum of Care 
group to accomplish goals as identified in the Grand Traverse Area ten-year plan to end 
homelessness. We view this ten-year plan as a living document and advocate to include the 
goal of ensuring resources are available to people experiencing chronic homelessness first 
based on acuity.  
 
Street Outreach brings the philosophy of ending homelessness to Safe Harbor. We help Safe 
Harbor work in ending homelessness by doing the following: 

1) Divert as many people as possible by making sure there are no natural, safe 
supports available before admittance to shelter.  

2) Coordinate access from Safe Harbor into the Goodwill Inn as appropriate when 
space becomes available. 

3) Triage housing assistance resources through the use of the vulnerability index (VI-
SPDAT). 

4) Coordinate the appropriate level of intervention through the use of the VI-SPDAT 
and service prioritization tool (SPDAT).  

5) Assist in keeping Safe Harbor as open and accessible as possible. We do this by 
assessing risk, modifying engagement strategies, and using de-escalation  
 techniques. We only exit people when necessary based on behavior. 

6) Also work with Safe harbor guests to access resources to end homelessness in the 
daytime. 

 
Safe Harbor contributes an invaluable service to the community and is an essential part of 
ending homelessness. The partnership with Street Outreach helps ensure the right things are 
being done to help end homelessness. 
 

32



±200 ft

A. New ±200 lineal 
feet 5’-0” sidewalk 
to engineer 
speci�cations
(in public ROW)

B. New ±68 lineal 
feet 5’-0” sidewalk 
to engineer 
speci�cations
(in public ROW)

B. New ±96 lineal 
feet 7’-0” sidewalk 
to engineer 
speci�cations
(in public ROW)

Option A
New West Sidewalk

Option B
New East Sidewalk

Option A
New West Sidewalk

Option B
New East Sidewalk

A. New ±11 
lineal feet 5’-0” 
sidewalk 
& curb ramp to 
driveway 
to engineer 
speci�cations
(on 517 parcel)

New 5’-0” 
unobstructed 
sidewalks 
on 517 parcel

A. New Cross-
walk on drive-
way with curb 
ramp meeting 
west sidewalk 
to engineer 
speci�cations
(on 520 & 517 
parcels)

Sidewalks - Attachment F

Si
de

w
al

ks
 - 

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t F

Sa
fe

 H
ar

bo
r o

f G
ra

nd
 T

ra
ve

rs
e,

 In
c.

New curb ramp to 
engineer speci�cations
(in public ROW)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

33



 

5947 London Drive, Traverse City, MI 49685      �     P: 231.492.4128 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SAFE HARBOR OF GRAND TRAVERSE INC. 

Proposal 

 
 

August 25, 2014 

 

Heritage Landscape Design proposes to perform all of the work described below to “Refresh” the landscape  
located at 517 Wellington., Traverse City, 49686. 
 
We will prune existing shrubs, remove wild grape vine off of the fence and remove all sumac suckers, and 
mow weeds and grass.         $ 1,400.00 
 
We will stripe the lot for parking spaces.      $    900.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Terms: ½ down on agreement, balance on completion 

 
 
 

To accept this proposal please sign and return.  Proposal is good for 30 days. 

SIGNATURE_____________________________________________ 

34

Peter
Typewritten Text



Peter
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

Peter
Typewritten Text



1 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
14-SLUP-03 

 
DATE: October 2, 2014 

 
 

APPLICANT:   Peter Starkel, Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse, Inc. 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS:  City of Traverse City 
 
STATUS OF APPLICANT: Prospective Leaseholder 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  517 Wellington Street. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Special Land Use Permit to operate an Emergency Shelter  
     
DESCRIPTION: COM AT NW COR OF LOT 42 BLK 2 TH W 33 FT TO C/L OF WELLINGTON 

ST TH S ON C/L OF WELLINGTON ST EXT TO N'LY LINE OF C & O R/W TH 
E'LY ALONG R/W TO E LINE OF LOT 31 TH N ON SAID LINE & E LINE OF 
LOT 31 TO S LINE OF ALLEY TH W TO POB BLK 2 HANNAH LAY & CO'S 
5TH ADD 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: Metal building used for storage and storage of materials outside  
 
 
SITE SIZE:   Approximately 1.26 acres (333 feet by 165 feet) 
TOPOGRAPHY:   Flat. 
VEGETATION:   Few trees on the south perimeter of the property. 
SOILS:    Sandy loam. 
EXISTING ZONING:  D-2 (Development District) 
 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING/LAND USE: 
 NORTH:   D-2   Development District / Commercial businesses and residences 
 SOUTH:   GP    Government Public District / Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 EAST:    D-2   Development District / Industrial Business 
 WEST:    D-2   Development District / Outside Storage, Nightclub 
 
ZONING HISTORY: Since 1999 the parcel has been zoned D-2 (Development 

District). 
 



2 
 

  
 
 
RELEVANT SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE: 
 
     Section 1364.02, General Standards for all SLUP’s 
     Section 1364.08 (q), Specific Standards for Emergency Shelters 
 
 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO THE MASTER PLAN: The Master Plan designates this area to be TC-5 
Downtown neighborhood where the focus is on high intensity, regional, commercial activity. 
(Pages 16/17).  This area is intended to be a regional hub for commercial and governmental 
services including resident resources. 
 
 
PUBLIC UTILITIES: There are adequate utilities to serve the proposed use.    
 
TRAFFIC: It is anticipated that this use will generate little motor 

vehicle traffic.  Pedestrian traffic is likely to be higher due 
to the clientele being served by this operation.  

       
 
ACCESS: The property is accessed by a low volume, short, dead-end 

street that connects to Eighth Street (a collector street) 
200 feet to the north. Wellington Street terminates at the 
alley that runs south of 8th Street.  South of the alley, is a 
private drive owned by the City and Arrow Roofing 
Company.  The property also has public access via the 
alley.  The sidewalk adjacent to the parcel is not 
continuous to Eighth Street (See image below).   The 
applicant has indicated a willingness to complete the 
sidewalk gaps per the City Engineer’s specifications. 

 

517 Wellington St. 



3 
 

   
      
PARKING: There is adequate on-site parking to accommodate the 

expected parking demand based on the Operational Plan 
submitted as part of the application.  24 parking spaces 
are proposed.  Note, “Safe Harbor” in S. San Francisco has 
90 beds and 24 parking spaces and the parking lot is full at 
night. (“Zoning for Shelter for the Homeless” Menlo Park, 
August 6, 2013).  Bicycle parking will be required per the 
Zoning Code. 

 
For a SLUP to be approved, all the general and specific standards must be met. 
 
General Standards 1364.02: 
 

(a) The use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character 
of the general vicinity. 

 
The existing character has somewhat of an industrial character with a wastewater 
treatment plant to the south and roofing company and chain saw repair business to 
the west. The existing building and outside storage contributes to the industrial 
character of the street’s south end.  To the north is a custom screen printing 
company, a comic book shop and multifamily and single family dwellings and a 
vacant commercial building. The Master Plan intends to have this area developed 
more intensely as a mixed used area with a downtown character providing a wide 
array of regional services and uses.  The Corridors Master Plan suggests a mix of uses 
including services, retail and residences. This plan also proposes the alley just north 
of the proposed shelter to be part of a new street linking Boardman and Woodmere 
Avenues.  An active emergency shelter is more consistent with the Master Plan than 
the current use of the building and grounds which is for storage.    
  

(b) The use shall not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or planned future uses in the 
same general vicinity. 

 
The Master Plan calls out this area to be part of a TC-5 Downtown Neighborhood.  
An emergency shelter providing seasonal overnight sleeping accommodations for 
those individuals experiencing homelessness is not hazardous or disturbing to 
existing or planned future uses in the vicinity provided the site is maintained and the 

Looking north toward Eighth Street 



4 
 

operation is well-managed as outlined in the submitted management plan.  Hours of 
operation for the shelter will be limited to evening, night and morning hours. 

 
(c) The use shall be served adequately by existing public facilities and services, such as 

highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, 
water and sewage facilities and schools. 

 
There are adequate public facilities to serve the proposed use.  To secure better 
access, an access agreement is under consideration with the property owner to the 
west.  Currently the property has access via a public alley and the east side of 
Wellington Street extended.  Problems with site drainage have been experienced in 
the past. An evaluation of the stormwater impacts on the building and grounds is 
warranted and required pursuant to Chapter 1068 of the City of Traverse City Code of 
Ordinances.  The area of consideration should include the property and adjacent 
public streets and alleys.   The Police Department stated the Department would be 
served by the centralization of an emergency shelter as opposed to seven churches 
within the City providing services. (Please see memo from the Chief of Police).  The 
Fire Chief indicated the proposed location for the Emergency Shelter can be 
adequately served by the Fire Department.  (Please see memo from the Fire Chief).  
 

 
(d) The use shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services. 
 

The proposed use will not create excessive additional requirements or costs for public 
facilities or services.  Homelessness in the community does burden emergency service 
personnel which includes personnel from the City Police and Fire. As stated above, 
the Police Department would be served by the centralization of an emergency shelter 
as opposed to seven churches within the City providing services. (Please see memo 
from the Chief of Police).  The Fire Department indicated the proposed use at this 
location will not require any additional Fire Department equipment or personnel.  
(Please see memo from the Fire Chief)    
  

 
(e) The use shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment or 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any person or property or to the 
general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 
glare, odors or water runoff. 

 
The seasonal shelter will produce far less motor vehicle trips as compared to other 
uses that are allowed by right in the D-2 (Development) District such as a hotel, bar 
or restaurant.  The proposed use has limited hours and the management plan states 
outdoor activity will be limited in terms of hours and is proposed to be located on the 
south side of the building facing the wastewater treatment plant thereby isolating 
outdoor activities from neighboring businesses and residences.  A well managed and 
maintained shelter for individuals experiencing homelessness will not be detrimental 
to any person or property in the general vicinity. 

 



5 
 

(f) Where possible, the use shall preserve, renovate and restore historic buildings or 
landmarks affected by the development. If the historic structure must be moved 
from the site, the relocation shall be subject to the standards of this section. 

 
No historic structures are impacted.  The property is not within a historic district.   

 
(g) Elements shall relate the design characteristics of an individual structure or 

development to existing or planned developments in a harmonious manner, 
resulting in a coherent overall development pattern and streetscape. 

 
The existing building is a metal building which has been marginally maintained as a 
storage building for the last several years.  The proposal is to make the parking lot 
less visible by eliminating six parking spaces that project beyond the west façade of 
the building and by adding site landscaping.  The Master Plan’s Urban Design 
Element calls out for buildings to be constructed with durable materials and be 
located close to the street edge.  Main entrances should face the street.  Pedestrian 
travel is encouraged with sidewalks, benches, drinking fountains, trash receptacles, 
etc.   Enhancements to the existing building with awnings and general clean-up and 
repair will help to make the building a positive contribution to the existing character 
of the area.  Long-term, a more significant building made of durable materials would 
reflect the planned development for a TC-5 (Downtown) type of neighborhood.   

 
(h) The use shall be consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district in 

which it is proposed. 
 

The intent of the D-2 District is for the purpose of accommodating a mixture of land 
uses.  Residential uses are intended to be combined with shopping, restaurant, office 
and entertainment uses to create a village-like atmosphere. Compact, pedestrian 
friendly developments which integrate well with adjacent properties are 
characteristic of these projects.   Emergency shelters are listed as a special use within 
the D-2 District.  Special land uses of land are permitted when general and specific 
standards in the ordinance are met.  Special land uses are considered compatible 
with other uses allowed in the district if all the standards that allow a Special Use are 
met.    

 
(i) The specific requirements outlined in each applicable section of this Zoning Code 

shall be satisfied. 
 

If the SLUP is granted, it appears the other specific requirements that pertain to this 
property and use can be met.  The change in use will prompt off-street parking 
requirements.  
 

Specific Requirements 1364.08(q) 
 
(1) The facility is fully enclosed in a building located in an HR, C-1, C-2, C-3, D-1,  
D-2, D-3, H-1, H-2, or I District. 
 
The proposed emergency shelter is located in a D-2 District. 



6 
 

 
  
(2) The site is located within a ½ mile of a bus stop connected by sidewalks or bike trails.  
 
The site is located 1310 feet from the nearest existing bus stop or about ¼ mile from the 
property. This bus stop is not connected by sidewalks or bike trails.  The sidewalks along 
Wellington Street are not continuous.  Bay Area Transportation Authority is proposing changes 
to the fixed routes in Traverse City.  The new routes indicate a bus stop to be located at the 
corner of Wellington and Eighth Street or about 200 feet from the proposed shelter.  This 
requirement is not currently met, but can be met as a condition of the SLUP. 
 
(3) The lot is not located within 1,500 feet of another lot devoted to transitional housing, 
emergency shelter. 
 
The lot is not located within 1,500 feet from another lot devoted to transitional housing or 
emergency shelter per definition of the City’s zoning code.  (Attached are correspondences from 
the Executive Directors of Addiction Treatment Facilities and Northern Michigan Supportive 
Housing.)  
  
(4) The facility shall have a maximum of 100 beds and/or sleeping pads.  
 
The proposal is to limit the maximum number of beds (or sleeping pads) to 90. 
 
(5) The building provides 50 square feet of heated building space per person staying overnight 
at the facility. 
 
The existing building, not including the office space within the building, provides more than 50 
square feet per person staying overnight at the facility.  Please see the proposed floor plan. 
  
(6) The operator of the Emergency shelter shall provide continuous, on-site supervision by an 
employee or volunteer during all hours of operation. 
 
The Operations Plan’s staff grid indicates at a minimum there will be three staff and one 
Goodwill staff for up to 55 guests.  There will be a minimum of five volunteer staff and two 
Goodwill staff if the facility operates with 70 to 90 guests. 
  
(7) The operator of the facility shall have a written management plan including, as applicable, 
staffing levels, provisions for staff and volunteer training, neighborhood outreach, length of 
stay of residents, hours of operation, crime prevention, security, screening of residents to 
insure compatibility and the mission of service provided at the facility. The management plan 
shall establish a maximum length of time which clients may be accommodated.  
 
The management plan addresses all the required information to be included in the written 
management plan.   
 
 
(8) The operator shall have an ongoing housing assistance program on the premises to place the 
residents into permanent housing and maintain a list of all persons residing at the facility. 



7 
 

 
The applicant has submitted an ongoing Housing Assistance Program that will include 
assistance on-premise with Goodwill employees at the proposed Emergency Shelter location at 
517 Wellington Street.    
 
 
(9) Parking requirements would be determined by the Planning Director based on the intensity 
of the operation described in the management plan. 
 
Based on the staffing level and the historical parking counts based on Safe Harbor’s experience, 
24 parking spaces will provide sufficient parking for the level of intensity proposed at 517 
Wellington Street.  By zoning code, a bicycle rack or inside bicycle storage is required. 
 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends that Special Land Use Permit No. 14-SLUP-03 be approved provided 
the following conditions are met: 
 

1. Sidewalks are constructed along Wellington Street, meeting the City Engineer’s 
specifications so there are continuous sidewalks from 517 Wellington Street to the 
Eighth Street sidewalks prior to the issuance of occupancy permit.  This requirement 
may include the entire reconstruction of Wellington Street to accommodate travel 
lanes and on-street parking. 

2. The Operations Plan dated September 2014 is implemented and followed. Minor 
operational changes such as meal times, facility locked times, training program 
adjustments and alike are permissible for good cause.  Changes in the number of 
beds, length of the seasonal operation, staffing levels below the stated minimums 
and alike are considered major changes that will require to following the procedures 
for a “Major amendment” to the Special Land Use Permit.  

3. The Emergency Shelter is limited to a maximum of 90 beds or sleeping pads. 
4.  The Emergency Shelter shall be seasonal and not be operated for shelter between 

May 15 to October 15. 
5. The stormwater drainage for the site and adjacent street and alleys shall be 

evaluated by the applicant to determine if there are any negative issues related to 
drainage and if so, remedies are implemented to properly address the drainage 
issues. 

6. A site plan is prepared that includes modifications to parking lot to bring it into 
compliance with current requirements. 

7. The Special Land Use Permit will automatically expire if the agreement for use of the 
building from the City is terminated.      

 
 





















Capital Projects for further review by the City Planning Commission 

  Page 1 of 2 
  9/23/14 

Michigan Planning Act (Section 61) reads: 
“ A street; square, park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public 
building or other structure shall not be constructed or authorized for construction  in an 
area covered by a municipal master plan unless the location, character, and extent of the 
street, public way, open space, structure, or utility have been submitted to the planning 
commission by the legislative body, or other body having jurisdiction over the 
authorization or financing of the project and has been approved by the planning 
commission.”  (Emphasis added) 
 

Approved projects, but not yet constructed: 
• Garland Streetscape- approved 7/20/11 
• Cass and Lake Streetscape- approved 2/7/12 
• 2014 Street Projects (including segments of West Front Street, Union Street, Sequoia 

Street and Santo Street) - approved 9/4/13 
• Pine Street Pedestrian Way- approved 3/4/14 
• Eighth Street Bridge Repair- approved 3/4/14 
• West Front Street Bridge Replacement- approved 3/18/14 
• Lot D (Boat Launch) Reconstruction- approved 3/18/14 
• Clancy Park Improvements- approved 4/1/14 

 
Projects (only listed are the projects requiring further review in FY14/15-FY16/17): 

• Bayfront Plan:  
o Public Pier (no year indicated) 
o Con Foster (16/17) 
o Hall Street Beach (16/17) 
o West End Beach Phase (16/17) 

• Parks and Recreation: 
o Brown Bridge Upper Trail Connector Bridge (east-west) (15/16) 
o Historic Brown’s Bridge (West-End) (16/17) 
o Hannah Park Improvements (15/16) 
o Union Street Dam Betterment Plan (14/15) 
o Union Street Dam: Outlet Relining and Toe Drain (16/17) 
o Boardman River Boardwalk (15/16) 
o Boardman Lake Trail West: 14th-South Airport (no year indicated) 
o Lower Boardman Enhancements (16/17) 
o Uptown/West Front Riverwalk from Union Street Dam to West Front Street 

Bridge (16/17) 
• Streets, Streetscapes and Bridges: 

o Annual Corridor Improvements (annual) 
o Annual Streets Programs (annual) 
o Annual Sidewalk Improvements (annual) 
o Bayshore Corridor Strategy (15/16-19/20) 
o Boardman Lake Avenue (dates are placeholders: 15/16-16/17) 
o Division Street (study in 14/15, construction in 19/20) 
o East Front Street Streetscapes (Boardman to Grandview Pkwy) (17/18) 



Capital Projects for further review by the City Planning Commission 

  Page 1 of 2 
  9/23/14 

o West Front Street: Elmwood to Maple (16/17) 
o Park Street Deck Entrance and Streetscapes (14/15; 16/17 respectively) 
o 200 Block Alley Enhanced Improvements (16/17) 

• Parking Lots: 
o Lot B (Farmers Market) Improvements (15/16) 

• Buildings: 
o Senior Center Building renovation (16/17) 
o Oakwood Cemetery: Construct New Maintenance Facility (14/15) 

• Other: 
o West Front Parking Deck (no year indicated) 
o Public Restrooms at Lot O (16/17) 

 


	2014_1007PlanningAgenda
	2014_0903PlanningMinutes
	2014_0905_PlanningQuorumMinutes
	2014_0916PlanningMinutesSpecial
	Project Review Consistency with Master Plan Cemetery Maintenance Facility
	cemeterymasterplanlettertoruss
	2014-162 SP C1-2 SITE PLAN_9-29-14
	A3.1 Floor Plan_9-29-14
	Bayshore Corridor Resolution
	124 W Front SLUP and Site Plan Review_Public Hearing
	124 West Front SLUP
	Slide Number 1

	staff_report_124_wfront_taller_building
	(b) The use shall not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or planned future uses in the same general vicinity.
	The proposed 5-story mixed use of the building (retail, residential and parking) reflects the proposed land uses and intensities in the area. Taller and larger buildings are intended for the TC-5 Neighborhood type.  The Zoning Code required a minimum ...
	(c) The use shall be served adequately by existing public facilities and services, such as highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities and schools.
	The proposed building is located on Front Street and across from Pine Street which are designated as collector streets. Nearby are Division Street and Grandview Parkway which are designated as arterials.  Schools should not be significantly impacted b...
	There are adequate utilities to serve this building. Overhead electrical lines that run from the Warehouse District across the river south to Hannah Park are planned to be undergrounded in 2015.  The developer will work with Traverse City Light and Po...
	(d) The use shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.
	The pedestrian bridge and electrical undergrounding are planned capital project improvements to the district.  The building will not create any excessive expenditures with public funds.
	(e) The use shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment or conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any person or property or to the general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ...
	The current street system can support the potential increased traffic volume. The proposed use of retail, residential, and a parking will not involve activities, processes, materials, equipment or nuisances that will be detrimental to any person or pr...
	(f) Where possible, the use shall preserve, renovate and restore historic buildings or landmarks affected by the development.  If the historic structure must be moved from the site, the relocation shall be subject to the standards of this section.
	There are no historic buildings on the site.  The parcel is a brownfield which was cleared several years ago as part of the overall development of the site.
	(g) Elements shall relate to the design characteristics of an individual structure or development to existing or planned developments in a harmonious manner, resulting in a coherent overall development pattern and streetscape.
	The design of the building has prominent store fronts with numerous windows and pedestrian entrances which will help break up the length of the building.  The scale, materials and details in the design of the proposed building appear to reflect and re...
	(h) The use shall be consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district in which it is proposed.
	(i) The specific requirements outlined in each applicable section of this Zoning Code shall be satisfied.

	SitePlanChecklist_124 W. Front St. 10-7-14
	124 West Front DDA Memo
	Letter for public hearing
	517 Wellington Emergency Shelter SLUP_Public Hearing
	Safe Harbor of Grand Traverse SLUP Application Package Final 9.30.2014
	Staff Report 517 Wellington
	Fire Dept memo
	Police Dept memo
	ATS letter
	NMSH letter
	Public comment letter
	Capital Projects Requiring Further Review_revised



